
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

July 12, 2022
Tray Payne, Mayor
Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem, District 2
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Steve Massengale, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

4:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Open Session, and recesses into
Executive Session to consider items 1.-1.2.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following:

  

 

1. 1. 1. City Attorney   

 

1. 1. 2. City Manager   

 

1. 1. 3. City Secretary   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of
Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on July 12, 2022. Citizen Comments provide
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda
items. Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 14, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
June 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - City Council Bus Tour

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 31, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Fund; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 32, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting all
funds Bearing Financial Commitments in regard to Electric, unleaded fuel and diesel fuel;
and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0103, amending
Chapter 30 “Lakes, Waterways and Floodplain” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock, in order to extend freeboard requirements to residential machinery and
equipment.

 



5. 4. Resolution - Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16620, with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for underground boring services.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16624, with Precision Drilling, a division of Brown-McKee, Inc., for traffic signal
pier drilling services.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the City
Council to accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a General Warranty Deed as
described in Exhibit A, associated with the transfer of various parcels of land from the
Urban Renewal Agency to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. 

 

5. 7. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a lease
agreement, with Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero, at the Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a lease
agreement, with Robert Madden Industries, Ltd., for building a new hangar at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
non-aeronautical lease agreement, with Marco Steel & Aluminum Co., for the lease of
warehouses and premises for storing and processing steel and steel products at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Public Works Contract 15261, with Teinert Construction, for
services related to the construction of the Municipal Parking Garage.

 

5. 11. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001638, with CDW Government, LLC, for professional services
related to the planned upgrade of the Microsoft active directory migration and domain
consolidation project for Public Safety.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001641, with Dell Financial Services, LLC, for a two-year
VMware Enterprise License Agreement for support for cloud-based and virtual hardware
and storage.

 

5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0095,
for Zone Case 696-A, a request of Stantec Consulting Services for Devon Self-Storage, for
a Specific Use for a self-storage facility on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) at
2010 Avenue R, located south of 20th Street and west of Avenue R, Sherwood Addition,
Lot 1.

 



5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0096,
for Zone Case 2418-C, a request of 3D Land Development, LLC, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), at
3504, 3506, 3507, and 3508 East Cornell Drive and 402 North Ironwood Avenue, Cherry
Point Addition, Lots 423-427.

 

5. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0097,
for Zone Case 3257-O, a request of City of Lubbock, Lubbock Fire Rescue, for a Specific
Use for Public Use on property zoned Garden Office District (GO), at 3302 142nd Street,
located north of 142nd Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 2.5 acres of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 1.

 

5. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0098,
for Zone Case 3356-A, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from General
Retail District (C-3) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), at 3136 130th
Street, located north of 130th Street and west of Flint Avenue, on 4.201 acres of unplatted
land out of Block E2, Section 21.

 

5. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0099,
for Zone Case 3016-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for the Kelling Family
Revocable Trust, and Enrico and Teresita Aguas, for a zone change from
Apartment-Medical District (AM), Transition District (T), and Garden Office District (GO)
to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a self-storage facility, generally located west
of Quincy Avenue and south of 98th Street, on 7.36 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 22.

 

5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0100,
for Zone Case 3289-A, a request of Betenbough Homes for Alcove Farms, for a Planned
Development (PD) on property zoned General Retail District (C-3) and Single-Family
District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Commercial Sustainable Farming at 7919, 7921, and
8101 4th Street, located south of 4th Street and west of Alcove Avenue, Alcove Farms
Addition, Tracts A and B, and 65.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block D-6, Section 2.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Appointments
Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority
Board of Directors, Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone
Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors,
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Permit and License Appeal Board, StarCare Board
of Trustees, Veterans Advisory Committee, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

6. 2. Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution appointing the City of Lubbock's
representative to the Hope Center Steering Committee to represent the City in all matters
related to the future construction and operations of the Hope Center.

 



 

6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0101,
for Zone Case 3382-A, a request of Betenbough Homes for 87 Street Partners, for a zone
change from General Retail District (C-3) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 9902 Upland
Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 98th Street, on 7.14 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 23.

 

6. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0102,
for Zone Case 3464, a request of Canyon Rock Development, LLC, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) to Light Manufacturing District (M-1), at 5721 122nd Street,
Frankford Farms Addition, Tract 11.

 



 AI# 10824 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 2. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of
Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal
Board, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 10839 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 14, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
June 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - City Council Bus Tour

Item Summary
May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
June 14, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
June 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - City Council Bus Tour

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
5.17.2022 S EUB 
6.14.2022 
6.16.2022 S Bus Tour 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 17, 2022
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 17th of May, 2022, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

11:06 A.M.  CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; First Assistant City Attorney Mitch Satterwhite 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Jeff Griffith 

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.

Note:      The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Public Comment 1.1; and Executive Session
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public
will have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a
translator will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on
the Electric Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the
public comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board
shall follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who
signed up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for
public comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the
floor to anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same
procedures and guidelines.

No one appeared to speak.

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 11:07 a.m. under the provisions of Section
551, Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 11:38
a.m. and adjourned.



2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss
and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably
related to the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 1. Discuss and deliberate issues regarding bidding and pricing for purchased power,

generation, and fuel, and Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and related
services and strategies.

 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power and fuel matters.  
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 4. 1. Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.
 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other

than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system

load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the City Council and
the Electric Utility Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State
Bar of Texas conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: 

 
2. 2. 1. Legal issues regarding contract(s), including Purchase Orders, herein listed on the agenda.
 
2. 2. 2. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda.
 
2. 2. 3. Schumacher v. City of Lubbock, Cause No. 2020-541,386, proceeding in the 72nd District

Court of Lubbock County, Texas.
 
2. 2. 4. Joint application of Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC and the City of Lubbock, acting

by and through Lubbock Power & Light, to transfer certificate of convenience and necessity
rights under PURA § 37.154, PUC Docket No. 52726, proceeding before the Public Utility
Commission of Texas.

Special City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2022 Page 2 of 6



 
2. 2. 5. Project to identify issues pertaining to Lubbock Power & Light’s proposal to transfer existing

facilities and load into the Electric Reliability Council of Texas, PUC Project No. 53198,
proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 2. 6. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for

authority to connect remaining portion of its load with Electric Reliability Council of Texas
and for approval of settlement agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529, proceeding before the
Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, evaluation, and duties of a public officer or employee (Director of
Electric Utilities and General Counsel).

 
11:30 a.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board will
reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open session will begin at 
11:30 a.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting of April 19,

2022; and the Special Electric Utility Board Meeting of April 29, 2022.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his

designee, regarding strategic planning, customer service, business center practices, procedures and
policies, customer concerns and complaints, billing system, forms, and procedures, status of
transmission and distribution projects, generation, mutual aid, weather events and business, outage,
and restoration efforts, staffing levels, personnel, regulatory matters, and operational performance
metrics.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues, reserve account
funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost recovery factor, customer
metering, tariff and billing, service and administrative issues.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion of the Note Purchase Agreement for City of Lubbock, Texas, Electric

Special City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2022 Page 3 of 6



3. 4. Presentation and discussion of the Note Purchase Agreement for City of Lubbock, Texas, Electric
Light and Power System Revenue Revolving Notes, by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas,
and Bank of America, N.A., and future plans regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Presentation and discussion of a preliminary plan of finance related to the upcoming proposed sale

of Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds Series 2022, relating to financing for
distribution improvements and that certain Settlement Agreement entered into between the City of
Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light and Southwestern Public Service
Company dated May 27, 2021, EUB Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0039, and City Council
Resolution No. 2021-R0201.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding any

updates on the transition to retail customer choice for Lubbock Power & Light’s certificated area.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA
 
4. 1. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities to execute that

certain Ordering Document by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Oracle America, Inc., regarding an additional environment for the Customer
Service Information and Workforce Management System, pursuant to that certain contract between
Oracle America Inc., and the State of Texas, acting by and through the Department of Information
Resources (“DIR”), DIR Contract DIR-TSO-4158, dated July 30, 2018, as it has been amended
from time to time.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution appointing and authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities to

act as the Authorized Representative for all Lubbock Power & Light filings with the Electric
Reliability Council of Texas, appointing and authorizing the Chief Operating Officer and the
Director of Grid Control & Compliance to act as the Back-up Authorized Representative(s), and
superseding and replacing Resolution No. EUB 2017-R0010 regarding the Authorized
Representative and Back-up Authorized Representative for ERCOT.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 3. The Board will consider a resolution ratifying Purchase Order No. 21111051, by and between the

City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and Anixter Inc., RFP#
7134-22-ELD, for LP&L Co-Op & Yellow House Conductor.

*This item was deleted.
 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2022 Page 4 of 6



4. 4. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to
execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Southland Grid Structures, LLC, RFP# 7137-22-ELD, for LP&L Steel
Transmission Poles for Vicksburg Substation.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 5. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Electrical Power Products Inc., RFP# 7141-22-ELD, for LP&L Vicksburg
Control Enclosure and Relay Panels.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 6. The Board will consider a resolution ratifying Purchase Order No. 21403549 as concerns line

items 2 and 7 of RFP# 7142-22-ELD for LP&L Substations Control Cable, by and between the
City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light and KBS Electrical Distributors,
Inc., and authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to execute Purchase Order as
concerns line items 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8 and 9, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and
through Lubbock Power & Light, and Anixter Inc., RFP# 7142-22-ELD, for LP&L Substations
Control Cable.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 7. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Stuart C. Irby, RFP# 7150-22-ELD, for LP&L Vicksburg Substation
Equipment and Materials.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 8. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute Purchase Order, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Anixter, Inc. ITB# 7153-22-ELD, for LP&L Downtown Distribution
Transformers.

*This item was deleted. 
 
4. 9. The Board will consider a resolution ratifying Purchase Order No. 21403555, by and between The

City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and Thomasson Company Quote
Request 22-7070-ELD Wood Poles. 

*This item was deleted. 
 
4. 10. The Board will consider a resolution approving Amendment No. 2 to Lubbock Power & Light’s

Special City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2022 Page 5 of 6



4. 10. The Board will consider a resolution approving Amendment No. 2 to Lubbock Power & Light’s
Purchasing Procedures pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 252.022, to amend
Lubbock Power & Light’s Purchasing Procedures adopted by Resolution No. EUB 2020-R0111 on
September 15, 2020, and as amended by Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0078 on November 17, 2021.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 11. The Board will consider a resolution approving the Permanent Right of Access and Use from

Texas Tech University, consisting of approximately 48,311 square feet, located in Section 22,
Block A, Lubbock County, Texas, being situated in that tract of land conveyed to the State of
Texas, described in a deed recorded in Volume 81, Page 345 of the Deed Records of Lubbock
County, Texas, and as more fully described in Exhibit A attached to the Permanent Right of
Access and Use, authorizing the Chairman of the Electric Utility Board to execute same,
recommending approval of such Permanent Right of Access and Use to and by the City Council of
the City of Lubbock, and superseding Resolution No. EUB 2022-R0036 regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 

11: 38 A.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th day
of July, 2022.

 
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
May 17, 2022 Page 6 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 14, 2022
2:30 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 14th of June, 2022, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:30 p.m.

  
2:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
1.1; Executive Session; 3.1-3.3.2; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.34; and 7.1-7.2.
Item No. 7.2 was amended.

               
1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
1. 1. Civic Lubbock, Inc.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, introduced the item, gave comments, and answered questions
from City Council.

Rafael Gutierrez, immediate past president of the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors; and
James Eppler, member of the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, gave a presentation on
Civic Lubbock, Inc. and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: the
mission, structure, and history of the organization; organizational functions; grant programs;
public art funded by Civic Lubbock, Inc and Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) allocations; recent
sponsorships funded by Civic Lubbock; Lubbock's musical heritage; the West Texas Walk of
Fame; the Lubbock Music NOW Project; and Civic Lubbock's value to the Lubbock community. 

Additionally, Mr. Gutierrez and Mr. Eppler introduced Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors
members Jim Douglass, Christi Cage, and Lindley Herring, who were in attendance. Vicki Key,
project coordinator for Civic Lubbock, Inc., was also introduced.

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
2. Executive Session



2. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 2:51 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council adjourned from
Executive Session at 3:42 p.m. The meeting was called back into open session at 4:40 p.m.,
and was called to order at 5:02 p.m.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
2. 1. 1. Discuss Chapter 211 of the Texas Local Government Code and relevant case law.
 
2. 1. 2. Resolution No. 2019-R0215 - Memorandum of Understanding with Palisade Pipeline, LLC
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors,
Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

  

 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:40 p.m.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

Pastor Jody Wilson, Trinity Fellowship Church, led the invocation.
 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

The South Plains Young Marines presented the colors. Pledges of Allegiance, to the United
States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris.

 
3. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
3. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in celebration of the 4th on Broadway Festival

Mayor Tray Payne presented a special recognition in celebration of the 32nd Annual 4th on
Broadway Festival. Katie Sandefer, executive director for 4th on Broadway; and Cami
Caldwell, representing Broadway Festivals, gave comments, thanked City Council for the
special recognition and their volunteers and sponsors for their continued support, and
invited all Lubbock citizens to attend this year's festivities. Additionally, Ms. Caldwell

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 2 of 10



introduced Blackwater Draw, who will be performing during this year's festivities, and who
also performed a song for City Council and those in attendance. This year's events will kick
off on Friday, July 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. with the Magic 106.5 La Raza on the Plaza Concert
and will continue with the Reliant Energy Country Kickoff Concert on Sunday, July 3,
2022, at 8:00 p.m., both live at Cook's Garage. 4th on Broadway festivities will continue on
Monday, July 4, 2022, beginning with the annual parade at 9:00 a.m. and culminating with
the United Supermarkets firework extravaganza at 10:00 p.m.

 
3. 3. 2. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of the 2022 Juneteenth Celebration

Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris presented a special recognition in support of the
2022 Juneteenth Rise Up Festival. D'Juana McPherson and Cory Powell, co-chairs of the
2022 Juneteenth Rise Up Festival, gave comments, thanked City Council for the special
recognition, and invited all Lubbock citizens to attend this year's festivities which will take
place on June 16, 2022, through June 19, 2022, and will include a pageant, live music, and a
fireworks show. 

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:02 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 14, 2022.  Citizen Comments provides an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak.
 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance

May 10, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Canvassing & Swearing-In Ceremony

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy, to approve the April 27, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance minutes; the May 10, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes;
and the May 17, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Canvassing & Swearing-In Ceremony
minutes.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 3 of 10



6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Steve Massengale,

to approve items 6.1-6.34. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0084, of the City of Lubbock,

Texas, granting to West Texas Gas, LLC, the franchise and rights to conduct natural gas
operations within the municipal boundaries of the City of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0081,

Amendment 27, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting General
Fund Fees; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0082,

Amendment 28, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund, Water/Wastewater Fund, Storm Water Fund, and the Fleet Capital Fund to
appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Project 92769, FY 2022-23 Pre-Purchase Vehicles;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0083,

Amendment 29, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the Streets
Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92697, Street
Maintenance Program; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 4. 1. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2022-R0258 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16543, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for Mill and Relay of a section
of North University Avenue, between the Marsha Sharp Freeway and the Clovis Highway.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0093,

Amendment 30, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services for
HIV Prevention Grant; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
6. 6. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0259 authorizing the Mayor to execute   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 4 of 10



6. 6. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0259 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16588, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., to provide professional services associated with
the Flood Protection Planning of Watersheds.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0260 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16585, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional services associated with the
Water and Wastewater Annexation Serviceability Analysis and Model Update Project.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0261 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 14076, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for electrical safety studies
after the construction of the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant Electrical Improvements Phase 2
Project.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0262 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Professional Services Agreement, Contract 16226, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for the Bailey
County Transmission Line Upgrades.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Traffic Operations: Ordinance No. 2022-O0094, amending Section

20.05.103 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to the establishment of
school zones and speed limits.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0263 approving a Downtown Grant

Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to The Betty M. Condra
School for Education Innovation, located at 1502 10th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of
the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
6. 12. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2022-R0264 approving a Downtown Grant

Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to The Betty M.
Condra School for Education Innovation, located at 1502 10th Street, pursuant to Article IV,
Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0265 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 4 to Contract HHS000109800001, the Immunization/Locals Grant
Program Contract, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas Department of
State Health Services, and all related documents.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 5 of 10



 
6. 14. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2022-R0266 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001631, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of Dell
OptiPlex desktop computers for the scheduled computer replacement program.

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2022-R0267 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001629, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of Latitude 7220
Rugged Tablets for scheduled replacement of in-vehicle computers for Public Safety and Public
Works.

  

 
6. 16. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Resolution No.'s 2022-R0268, 2022-R0269, 2022-R0270,

2022-R0271 & 2022-R0272 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 16557 with R&B
Bearings & Hydraulics, Inc., Contract 16558 with American Equipment & Trailer, Inc., Contract
16560 with Liberty Oilfield Repair dba Liberty Welding, Contract 16559 with Sawco Truck
Equipment, and Contract 16430 with Brundage Manufacturing, LLC, for the fabrication and
repairs on the City's heavy-duty vehicles and equipment. 

  

 
6. 17. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Resolution No.'s 2022-R0273 & 2022-R0274 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Contract 16616 with H88 Auto, and Contract 16496 with Gloe Finance
Company LLC dba Apache Transmission, for secondary vendors to provide repairs and
maintenance for the City's light-duty vehicles and equipment.

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0275 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31066587, with Silsbee Ford, Inc., for the purchase of five 3/4-Ton, 4x4 pickup
trucks for Codes Administration, Residential Collections, Water Meter and Customer Service,
and Vector Control Departments.

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0276 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31066591, with Doggett Freightliner of South Texas - Austin, for the purchase
of one 2023 Freightliner 114SD Roll-Off Truck, for the Residential Collection Department.

  

 
6. 20. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0277 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31066652 with Xylem Dewatering Solutions, Inc., for the purchase of a Godwin
Dri-Prime, Trailer-Mounted Pump, for the Wastewater Collection Department.

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0278 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 16495, with Kann Manufacturing Corporation, for the purchase of hydraulic cylinders
for trucks in the Solid Waste/Residential Collections Department.

  

 
6. 22. Resolutions - Fleet Services: Resolution No.'s 2022-R0279 & 2022-R0280 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Contract 16539 with South Plains Towing, and Contract 16633 with Lubbock
Wrecker Service, for towing services for the City's light-duty and heavy-duty vehicles and
equipment.

  

 
6. 23. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2022-R0281 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 6 of 10



6. 23. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2022-R0281 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16488 with Aqua Rec, Inc., for the purchase of pool service and chemical
systems for City pools.

  

 
6. 24. Resolution - Libraries: Resolution No. 2022-R0282 authorizing the Mayor to execute Member

Enrollment Agreement No. 16555, by and between the City of Lubbock and Sourcewell,
for wireless services, internet connectivity, and device purchases related to the Emergency
Connectivity Fund Grant awarded to the Lubbock Public Libraries.

  

 
6. 25. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0283 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas acting through the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State right-of-way during
the 2022 IRONMAN 70.3 Lubbock Triathlon.

  

 
6. 26. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0284 approving American Rescue Plan Act

(ARPA) Agreement No. 16663, by and between the City of Lubbock and the East Lubbock
Resident Owned Business Initiative (EL ROBI), for job training services.  

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Erik Rejino, assistant city manager; and Reggie Dial, executive
director of the East Lubbock Resident Owned Business Initiative (EL ROBI), gave comments
and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
6. 27. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2022-R0285 approving the Permanent

Right of Access and Use from Texas Tech University, consisting of approximately 48,311 square
feet, located in Section 22, Block A, Lubbock County, Texas, being situated in that tract of land
conveyed to the State of Texas, described in a deed recorded in Volume 81, Page 345 of the
Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, and as more fully described in Exhibit A attached to
the Permanent Right of Access and Use, authorizing the Mayor of the City of Lubbock to
execute same, and superseding Resolution No. 2022-R0207 regarding same.

  

 
6. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0085, for Zone Case

2904-K, a request of Casey Sherwood for Jackie Mize, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Family Apartment District (A-1) at 408 Avenue T,
located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue T, Overton Addition, Block 34, the
south 75 feet of Lots 1-5 less the northwest corner of Lot 5.

  

 
6. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0086, for Zone Case

3145-I, a request of Deaco Group for Highwell Real Estate, for a zone change from Central
Business District, Civic Center (CB-5) to Commercial District (C-4), at 1711 Marsha Sharp
Freeway, Overton Addition, Block 106, Lots 14-15 and the south part of Lot 16.

  

 
6. 30. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Ordinance No. 2022-O0087, for Zone Case

2418-B, a request of Quorum Shopping Center, for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail
District (C-2A) Specific Use for a game room to Local Retail District (C-2), at 5102 60th Street,
Piedmont Addition, Tract B.

  

 
6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0088, for Zone Case   

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 7 of 10



6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0088, for Zone Case
1876-A, a request of Wheelhouse Development for WH LBK Lots, LP, for a zone change from
Local Retail District (C-2) to General Retail District (C-3), at 8101 Indiana Avenue, Melonie
Gardens Addition, Tract A.

  

 
6. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0089, for Zone Case

3257-N, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Rocket Partners LLC &
1585 Development LLC, for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Local
Retail District (C-2), generally located south of 135th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 6.4
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1.

  

 
6. 33. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0090, for Zone Case

2916-D, a request of Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 3R & P Holdings, LLC, for
a zone change from Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) to Family Apartment District
(A-1), generally located east of Wausau Avenue and south of 82nd Street, on 9.68 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 26.

  

 
6. 34. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2022-O0091, for Zone Case

2538-CC, a request of Kip Ledgerwood, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to
Commercial District (C-4), at 7419 19th Street, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 19th
Street, on 2.52 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42.

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Ordinance No. 2022-O0092, for Zone Case

3286-A, a request of Leslie Rhodes for Church on the Rock, for a zone change from
High-Density Apartment District (A-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to
Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for prisons, jails, detention facilities, restitution
centers, halfway houses for early release programs from prison, or community-based residential
centers certified by the Texas Board of Pardons and Paroles, per Section 40.03.3103 (b), at 3003
Avenue J, located east of Avenue J and south of 30th Street, Hufstedler Addition, Block 2, and
the west 234 feet of Block 1.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Mark W.

McBrayer, to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0092. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia (RECUSE) 

 
7. 2. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2022-R0286 establishing a Citizens Advisory

Committee to study and make recommendations regarding the street and roadway construction
and repair needs of the City of Lubbock, and for a possible future bond election in connection
therewith, and naming members to said Committee.

This item was amended.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 8 of 10



This item was amended.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

Main Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0286 as presented at the dais.

Motion to Amend by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member
Latrelle Joy, to amend the main motion by striking Section 2 of the Resolution and replacing it
with the following:
  

"SECTION 2. THAT each member of the City Council shall appoint two (2) members to
the CAC, except that the Mayor, who shall appoint one (1) member to the CAC. The Mayor
shall designate the chair of the CAC."; and that any necessary conforming changes also be
made to the Resolution. 

Vote on Motion to Amend 
Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

Vote on Main Motion with Amendment
Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

City Council appointed the following members of the Citizens Advisory Committee: Clyde
James and Rudy Leal, representing District 1; Adam Hernandez and Marcella Ford, representing
District 2; David Bruegel, representing District 3; Marsha Reed and Ron Bartley, representing
District 4; Ken Corbin and John Rantz, representing District 5; Jordan Lewis and Dean Raymond,
representing District 6; and Heather Keister, at-large, who will serve as chair.

Council Member Mark W. McBrayer will select and announce his second appointment,
representing District 3, at a later date.

 

5:40 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 14, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th day
of July, 2022.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 9 of 10



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2022 Page 10 of 10



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

June 16, 2022
1:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 16th of June, 2022, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:00 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor TrayPayne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note: City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1-1.4

City Council Bus Tour
 
1. 1. 1:00 p.m. - Convene at the City Council Chambers, 1314 Ave K, to gather for the tour. The City

Council will not take any action or vote on any matter during the tour. All arrival times are estimates
and the actual arrival times at each location could be delayed.

City Council convened at 1:00 p.m.
 
1. 1. 1. 1:05 p.m. - Recess and depart City Council Chambers for the Emergency Operations Center,

1515 E. Ursuline Street.

City Council recessed at 1:01 p.m. and departed for the Emergency Operations Center, located
at 1515 E. Ursuline Street.

 
1. 2. 1:20 p.m. - Convene at Emergency Planning Conference Room in the Emergency Operations Center

to hear presentations listed below.

City Council reconvened at 1:20 p.m. in the Emergency Planning Conference Room at the
Emergency Operations Center.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
1. 2. 1. Presentation and discussion on Lubbock Fire Rescue.



1. 2. 1. Presentation and discussion on Lubbock Fire Rescue.

Shaun Fogerson, fire chief, gave a presentation on Lubbock Fire Rescue and answered
questions from City Council. Nick Wilson and Rob Keinast, deputy fire chiefs, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council.

 
1. 2. 2. Presentation and discussion on Lubbock Police Department.

Jon Caspell, assistant chief of police, gave a presentation on the Lubbock Police Department
and answered questions from City Council. Nathan White, assistant chief of police, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
1. 2. 3. Presentation and discussion on Lubbock Power & Light.

Blair McGinnis, chief operating officer for LP&L, gave a presentation on Lubbock Power &
Light and answered questions from City Council. Matt Rose, government relations & public
affairs manager for LP&L, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
1. 2. 4. Presentation and discussion on Lubbock Emergency Management.

Joe Moudy, director of emergency management, gave a presentation on the Office of
Emergency Management and answered questions from City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city
manager; and Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave comments and answered questions
from City Council.

 
1. 2. 5. Tour of Emergency Operations Center.

City Council, staff, and citizens, who were in attendance were led on a tour of the Emergency
Operations Center by Joe Moudy, director of emergency management.

 
1. 2. 6. 2:55 p.m. - Recess and depart Emergency Operations Center for South Water Treatment Plant,

5114 Farm-to-Market 1585.

City Council recessed at 2:49 p.m. and departed for the South Water Treatment Plant, located at
5114 Farm-to-Market 1585.

 
1. 3. 3:30 p.m. - Convene at South Water Treatment Plant in the Meeting Room and hear presentations

listed below.

City Council reconvened at 3:24 p.m. in the Meeting Room at the South Water Treatment Plant.
 
1. 3. 1. Presentation and discussion on Public Works.

Wood Franklin, division director of public works; Brenda Haney, director of solid waste; and
Aubrey Spear, director of water utilities, gave a presentation on public works and answered
questions from City Council.

 
1. 3. 2. Presentation and discussion on Engineering.

Special City Council Meeting 
June 16, 2022 Page 2 of 4



1. 3. 2. Presentation and discussion on Engineering.

Mike Keenum, division director of engineering/city engineer, gave a presentation on the City of
Lubbock Engineering Department and answered questions from City Council.

 
1. 3. 3. Discuss City Council tour and the presentations made during the tour. 

Discussion ensued among City Council regarding the presentations made during the tour.

Wood Franklin, division director of public works; and Aubrey Spear, director of water utilities,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
1. 3. 4. Discuss starting times, schedules and the procedures for proclamations and special recognitions

at City Council meetings, including the organization and structure of City Council meetings.

Discussion ensued among City Council regarding starting times, schedules, the procedures for
proclamations and special recognitions, and the organization and structure of future City
Council meetings.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. City Council discussed 2:00 p.m. start times for Regular City
Council meetings, starting in August, and for the upcoming budget work sessions. City Council
also discussed scheduling special recognitions on a quarterly basis. 

 
1. 3. 5. Tour of the South Water Treatment Plant.

City Council, staff, and citizens, who were in attendance, were led on a tour of the South Water
Treatment plant by Wood Franklin, division director of public works; and Mike Lowe, water
treatment superintendent. 

 
1. 3. 6. 5:15  p.m. - Recess and depart South Water Treatment Plant for Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue

K.

City Council recessed at 5:07 p.m. and departed for Citizens Tower, located at 1314 Avenue K.
 
1. 4. The City Council will arrive at Citizens Tower and adjourn.

City Council arrived at Citizens Tower at 5:36 p.m. and adjourned.
 

5:36 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The June 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th day

Special City Council Meeting 
June 16, 2022 Page 3 of 4



The June 16, 2022 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 12th day
of July, 2022.

 
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
June 16, 2022 Page 4 of 4



 AI# 10841 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 31,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Airport Capital Fund; and
providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92770, Terminal Building Electrical Upgrades, and appropriate
funding in the amount of $5,000,000. The funding will be from Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Funds in
the amount of $4,750,000, Airport cash from Capital Improvement Project 8616, Terminal Apron
Maintenance, in the amount of $156,138, Capital Improvement Project 92614, Acquire Snow Removal
Equipment, in the amount of $84,620, and Airport Fund Balance in the amount of $9,242.

II. Amend Capital Improvement Project 8616, Terminal Apron Maintenance, by decreasing funding by
$156,138, from $4,315,083 to $4,158,945.

III. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92614, Acquire Snow Removal Equipment, by decreasing
funding in the amount of $84,620, from $846,202 to $761,582.

IV. Amend Capital Improvement Project 92614, Acquire Snow Removal Equipment, by appropriating
funding in the amount of $57,300, from $761,582 to $818,882. The additional funding will be from the
Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Securities Act.

V. Amend Capital Improvement Project 8648, Airfield Pavement Maintenance, by appropriating funding
in the amount of $291,684, from $809,690 to $1,101,374. The additional funding will be from the
Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Securities Act.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment #31 







 AI# 10851 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 32,
amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting all funds Bearing Financial
Commitments in regard to Electric, unleaded fuel and diesel fuel; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Amend the FY 2021-22 Operating Budget of all funds containing charges for electric as shown in
Exhibit A. Electric charge will increase by $430,000 in total.

II. Amend the FY 2021-22 Operating Budget of all funds containing charges for unleaded fuel as shown
in Exhibit C. Unleaded fuel charge will increase by $712,167 in total.

III. Amend the FY 2021-22 Operating Budget of all funds containing charges for diesel fuel as shown in
Exhibit D. Diesel fuel charge will increase by $982,703 in total.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
BA 32 and Exhibits 









 AI# 10815 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0103, amending Chapter 30
“Lakes, Waterways and Floodplain” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, in order to
extend freeboard requirements to residential machinery and equipment.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The Community Rating System (CRS) is a voluntary program within the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP). The CRS provides flood insurance discounts to communities that implement programs
and measures that exceed minimum floodplain management requirements of the NFIP. The City of
Lubbock has been a participant in the NFIP since 1982, and joined the CRS in 1992. The CRS
determines discounts based on credits earned and class prerequisite achievements for participant
activities and programs.

In January 2021, the CRS implemented a new CRS Class 8 prerequisite for freeboard for all
participating and new CRS communities. The prerequisite requires the community to adopt and enforce
at least a 1-foot freeboard requirement (including machinery and equipment) for all residential buildings
constructed, substantially improved, and/or reconstructed due to substantial damage throughout the
Special Flood Hazard Area.

These amendments extend the City's flood protection levels for residential and manufactured homes to
include machinery and equipment, and ensure that the City has achieved compliance with the CRS
prerequisite to be at least a Class 8 community. The City's existing flood protection levels meet the
1-foot freeboard requirement for the lowest floor (excluding machinery and equipment), and exceeds it
in areas identified within the Master Drainage Plan as areas of greater risk and uncertainty.

Additional amendments included the following: 
Updates the most recent publication date of the Flood Insurance Rate Maps and Flood Insurance
Study from January 2, 2013, to February 3, 2017.
Amends application area and special flood hazard areas to align with language in the Drainage
Criteria Manual and Master Drainage Plan study areas. Ensures that flood protection levels
identified by City studies, but not yet studied by the NFIP, are required to meet the same level of
protection.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance 
Redline Ordinance 











Sec. 30.03.007     Lands to which article applies 

This article shall apply to all lands located in the City of Lubbock Floodplains and which 
includes areas of special flood hazard within the city.  

 

Sec. 30.03.008     Basis for establishing areas of special flood hazard 

1. City Floodplain studies produced for the Master Drainage Plan and as set forth in the most 
recently adopted Drainage Criteria Manual are incorporated herein. 
 

1.2.The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
in a scientific and engineering report entitled “The Flood Insurance Study for Lubbock 
County, Texas, and Incorporated Areas” dated January 2, 2013February 3, 2017, with 
accompanying flood insurance rate maps (FIRM) and any revisions thereto are hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this article. 

 

Sec. 30.03.073     Specific standards 

In all areas of City Floodplain and special flood hazard where base flood elevation data have 
been provided, as set forth in section 30.03.008, 30.03.003(b)(8) or 30.03.072(c) of this article, 
the following regulations shall apply for the corresponding construction type as set forth 
below:the following provisions are required: 

(1)     Residential construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any 
residential structure shall have the lowest floor (including basement), electrical, 
heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities, 
including ductwork, elevated to the most restrictive flood protection elevation as set 
forth below;excluding garage, elevated to or above: 

(A)     One (1) foot above the 1% annual chance flood elevation established by 
the City of Lubbock Master Drainage Plan; 

(B)  If located in a flood hazard area, the lowest floor (including basement) will 
be one foot above the peak water surface elevation established by the FIRM of 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA); otherwise it shall be: 

(BC)     Two (2) feet above the applicable playa lake overflow elevation; 

(CD)     Eighteen (18) inches above the highest gutter elevation (or if no curb and 
gutter is present, one foot above top of crown) of the nearest adjacent street(s); 



(DE)     Six (6) inches above the calculated peak water surface elevation if a 
design waiver has been granted in accordance with the drainage criteria manual; 
or 

(E)     One foot above the 500-year 24-hour base flood elevation if located by a 
non-overflow playa lake, whichever is greater. 

     A registered professional engineer, architect or land surveyor shall submit a 
certificate to the floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection, as 
proposed in accordance inwith  section 30.03.042(1) of this article, is are satisfied. 

(4)   Manufactured homes. 

(A)     All manufactured homes to be placed or substantially improved within 
zones A, AO, AH, or AE on a community'sthe City’s FIRM and within the City 
Floodplains on sites that are: 

1.  Outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision,  

2.  In a new manufactured home park or subdivision,  

3.  Existing manufactured home park or subdivision being enlarged, or 

4.  In an existing manufactured home park or subdivision in which the 
manufactured home has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood 
or other causes 

 shall be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage. 
For the purpose of this requirement, manufactured homes must be elevated and 
anchored to resist flotation, collapse or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring 
may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 
anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable state and local anchoring 
requirements for resisting wind forces.placed on a permanent foundation so that 
the lowest floor of the manufactured home, electrical, heating, ventilation, 
plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities, including 
ductwork, and shall be elevated to the most restrictive flood protection level as 
set forth in Section 1 above; and 

(B)   Shall be securely anchored to an anchored foundation system to resist 
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, including but not limited to over-the-
top or frame ties to ground anchors, while complying with all other state and local 
regulations. 

(B)     All manufactured homes shall be in compliance with subsection (1). 



(C)     All manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within 
zones A1-30, AH, and AE on the city's FIRM on sites: (i) outside of a 
manufactured home park or subdivision; (ii) in a new manufactured home park 
or subdivision; (iii) in an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or 
subdivision; or (iv) in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on 
which a manufactured home has incurred substantial damage as a result of a flood, 
be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest floor (including 
basement), excluding garage, of the manufactured home shall be elevated to or 
above the base flood elevation and be securely anchored to an adequately 
engineered foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement. 

(i)     If located in a flood hazard area, the lowest floor (including basement) 
will be one foot above the peak water surface elevation established by the 
FIRM; 

(ii)     Two (2) feet above the applicable playa lake overflow elevation; 

(iii)     Eighteen (18) inches above the highest gutter elevation (or if no curb 
and gutter is present, one foot above top of crown) of the nearest adjacent 
street; 

(iv)     Six (6) inches above the calculated peak water surface elevation if a 
design waiver has been granted in accordance with the drainage criteria 
manual; 

(v)     One foot above the 500-year 24-hour base flood elevation if located 
by a non-overflow playa lake; or 

(vi)     Whichever is greatest. 

(D)     Require that manufactured homes be placed or substantially improved on 
sites in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision with zones A1-30, 
AH and AE on the community's FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of 
subsection (4) of this section be elevated so that either: 

(i)     The lowest floor (including basement) of the manufactured home is at 
or above the base flood elevation; or 

(ii)     The manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers or other 
foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-six 
(36) inches in height above grade and be securely anchored to an adequately 
engineered anchor foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral 
movement.  

 



 AI# 10731 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16620, with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for underground boring services.

Item Summary
This contract is for underground boring services to be utilized during the construction of traffic signals.
The contractor is responsible for obtaining necessary City and State permits, providing traffic control
according to the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD) standards, and
coordinating with Traffic Operations staff regarding scheduling. The City will provide the conduit for
the underground boring operations. Traffic conduit contains all the cable required to power and operate a
traffic signal.

In response to RFP 22-16620-TF, one proposal was received and opened on June 16, 2022.
  

Contractor Amount
Utility Contractors of America, Inc. $130,329.15

The contract term is one year, with the option of 2 one-year extensions. The contract term will begin
upon formal approval. All stated annual quantities are approximations and actual quantities will be
determined by need, based on intersection geometry. The City does not guarantee any specific amount of
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting contract.
The contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract, including
any extensions. It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that valid insurance is on file with the
Purchasing and Contract Management Department, as required by the contract, or the contract may be
terminated for non-compliance.

The Evaluation Committee recommends award to the sole bidder, Utility Contractors of America, Inc.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $130,329 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92742, Traffic Signal FY 21-22
through FY 25-26.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - 16620 - Utility Contractors of America 



Contract - 16620 - Utility Contractors of America 
16620 Project Summary Sheet 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 











































 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

RFP 22-16620-TF 

Underground Boring Services 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 29 & June 5, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from May 29 to June 16, 2022. 

4 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

21 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

21 vendors downloaded the documents. 

15 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 
 
 

 



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

MH Civil Construction-ADA Ramps 27,490$
Traffic Signal Equipment 168,525

Agenda Items July 12, 2022
Underground Boring Services 43,443

Encumbered/Expended To Date 239,458

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services 10,563
Traffic Signal Equipment 120,214

  Remaining Appropriation 130,777

Total Appropriation 370,235$               

92742
Traffic Signal FY 21-22 through FY 25-26

City of Lubbock, TX 
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail 
July 12, 2022



Project Name Traffic Signal FY21-22 through FY25-26 Project Number 92742

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Traffic Operations

David Bragg

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

Install signals at un-signalized intersections and school zones as warranted, upgrade new controllers, and perform necessary repairs.  

Major repairs such as replacing crushed conduit and wiring, rebuilding failing signal arm assemblies, and exchanging cabinets and 

signal arm assemblies that have been damaged is not included in the Department's maintenance budget or in the Traffic Signal Upgrade 

project.

Start Date: 10/1/2021

Bid Date - Design: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design: N/A

Project Start Date - Design: N/A

Project End Date - Design: N/A

Bid Date - Construction: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Construction: N/A

Project Start Date - Construction: 10/1/2021

Project End Date - Construction: 9/30/2026

Project Justification

The project provides funding for new signals and school zones designed and constructed in-house.  The project will also be utilized to 

upgrade existing traffic signals requiring major repairs.  Public safety is a major factor considered when installing and maintaining 

traffic signals and school zones.

Project History

$350,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  350,000  0  0  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  350,000  0  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  350,000  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  350,000  0  0  350,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  350,000  0  350,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 



 AI# 10831 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Traffic Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16624, with Precision Drilling, a division of Brown-McKee, Inc., for traffic signal pier drilling services.

Item Summary
This contract is for traffic signal pier drilling services, necessary for construction of traffic signal mast
arm assemblies.

In response to ITB 22-16624-TF, one bid was received and opened on June 16, 2022.
  

Contractor Amount
Precision Drilling, a division of Brown-McKee,
Inc., Lubbock, TX $31,690

The contract term will be one year, with the option of 4 one-year extensions. The contract term will
begin upon formal approval. All stated annual quantities are approximations and order quantities will be
determined by actual need. The City does not guarantee any specific amount of compensation, volume,
minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting contract. The contractor must
maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract including any extensions. It is
the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and
Contract Management Department, as required by the contract, or the contract may be terminated for
non-compliance.

Staff recommends award to the sole bidder, Precision Drilling, a division of Brown-McKee, Inc., of
Lubbock, Texas.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $31,690 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92742, Traffic Signal FY 21-22
through FY 25-26.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 16624 
Contract 16624 
16624 Project Summary Sheet 



Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Service Contract No. 16624 for traffic signal pier
drilling services as per ITB 22-1 6624-TF, by and between the City of Lubbock and Precision
Drilling a division of Brown-McKee, Inc. of Lubbock, TX, and related documents. Said
Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and
shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

ATTEST:

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ccdocs/RES.ServiceContract 16624 Traffic signal pier drilling services
06.2 1.22

Assistant City Manager



Contract 16624
City of Lubbock

Contract for
Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this day of , 2022, by and between the
City of Lubbock (‘City”), and Precision Drilling a division of Brown-McKee, Inc. , (“Contractor”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Traffic Signal Pier Drilling
Services and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized
the execution, in the name ofthe City ofLubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase
and delivery of the said Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the
financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows:

1 . In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Traffic Signal Pier Drilling
Services and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 1-3 on the bid submitted by
the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3 . The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one year extensions,
said date of term beginning upon formal approval. All stated annual quantities are
approximations ofusage during the time period to be covered by pricing established by this bid.
Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be determined by actual need. The City
of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of compensation, volume, minimum, or
maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting contract. The Contractor must
maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract including any
extensions. It is the responsibility ofthe Contractor to ensure that valid insurance is on file with
the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or contract may
be terminated for non-compliance.

4. Prices quoted shall be set for a period for one (1) year, said date of term beginning upon City
Council date of formal approval. The rate may be adjusted upward or downward at this time at
a percentage not to exceed the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) or Product Price
Index (PPI), which ever is most appropriate for the specific contract for the previous 12-months
at the City’s discretion, the effective change rate shall be based on either the local or national
index average rage for all items. If agreement cannot be reached, the contract is terminated at
the end of the current contract period.

5. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date,
(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written



notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest
and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest ofthe city.

6. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of
City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold
itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to
enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City.

7. Insurance Requirements

SECTION A. Prior to the approval ofthis contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY.
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions,
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor.
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor’s right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor’s sole expense, insurance coverage written by
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and
amount(s):

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence I $2M aggregate (can be
combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts.
It is perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It
insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for
completed operations. Automatically add an excess liability of $4M.

Commercial General Liability Heavy Equipment Endorsement: Heavy equipment
endorsement is required.

Commercial General Liability Digging Endorsement: XCU endorsement is required

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed

Workers Compensation Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an independent
contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers’ Compensation
coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of
their driver’s license.
* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded
additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies
except professional liabilities and workers’ comp.
* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC.
* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement.
* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non
payment.
* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.
* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above



IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS

The Contractor will provide copies ofthe policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular
policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by
law or regulation binding upon either ofthe parties hereto or the underwriter ofany ofsuch policies).
Upon such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such
changes in policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor.

REQUIRED PROVISIONS

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the
following required provisions:

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional
insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage;

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change;

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail;

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City ofLubbock, its officers, employees,
and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to
the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance;

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care
together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability
coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies.

NOTICES

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE.

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address:

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management
City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor
Lubbock, Texas 79401

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor offull responsibility or liability for damages and accidents
as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial ofliability by
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability.

8 . Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or
interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other.

9. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity,
or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court
of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior
to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall
control.



10. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves
the right to audit Contractor’s records and books relevant to all services provided to the City
under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments
by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30
days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts
owing the City from any payments due Contractor.

1 1 . All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual
appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event ofnon-appropriation offunds by the City
Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City
will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the
then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods
or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds
are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the
Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be ofno effect and the
City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination.

12. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be
given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proofon insurance from the
Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements.

1 3 . Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully
understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive
material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City
disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by
the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and
conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail.
The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any
prior conflicting terms shall be ofno force or effect.

14. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist
organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252. 1 53, Texas
Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services
to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign
terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas
Government Code.

15. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this
contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that
subchapter.

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor
agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the
contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental
body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental
body all contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the



entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

16. Pursuant to Section 2271 .002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a
contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time
employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from
public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract
with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the
company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the
contract.

17. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the
duration ofthe contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against
a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002
ofthe Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.

If Contractor is a company with 1 0 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a
value ofat least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code
Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against
a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the
Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.

If Contractor is a company with 1 0 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a
value of at least $ 1 00,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code
Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies
during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a
governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental
entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of
debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.

1 8. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City’s
business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without
prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law.

19. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials,
officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of
any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney’s fees, for injury or death to any
person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to
the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its
agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions
under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity
obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement.

20. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 22-
16624-TF, Specifications, and the Bid Form.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed the day and
year first above written. Executed in triplicate.

CITY OF LUBBOCK CONTRACTOR

____________________

BY’( dc
Tray Payne, Mayor Authorized Representative

Ai,1&E t Q5
ATTEST: Print Name

___________________

, - <-c-ô
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary Address

/ /2 L€)b149e417 7’!’4
APP7OVED AS TO ONTENT: City, State, Zip Code

//122
/ood Fr nkl , P.E., Division Director of Public Works

APPROVED AS TO FOR

Kelli Leis e, Assi t C Attorney



City of Lubbock, TX
ITB 22-16624-TF

Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services
Specifications

This specification shall cover Drilled Shafts for City of Lubbock Traffic Signal Arm Assemblies.

All drilled shafts shall conform to 2014 Texas Department ofTransportation (TXDOT) Standard
Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets, and Bridges — Item 4 1 6 “Drilled
Shaft Foundations”

. https://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/cmd/cserve/specs/20 1 4/standard/s4 1 6.pdf

1 . This bid only covers specifications for drilling the shaft to the required dimensions.

2. Reinforcing steel, concrete and slurry displacement are not a part ofthis bid and shall be excluded
from the specification. If casing is required refer to section 3 .3 of the above mentioned TxDOT
specification.

3 . All drilled shaft locations shall be marked and approved by the City of Lubbock Traffic Operations
Department prior to drilling.

4. All material excavated shall be removed by City ofLubbock personnel.

5. The contactor is responsible for all utility locates and permits prior to drilling shafts.

6. The shafts to be drilled will be 36” (inches) or 48” (inches) in diameter.

7. Shaft depths can vary from 13’ (feet) to 22’ (feet). Dimensions shall be determined by plans.

8. Further information regarding Traffic Signal shafts can be found in TXDOT’s standard sheets:

a. Traffic Signal Pole Foundations, TS-FD-12 and
b. Traffic Signal Support Structures, Long Mast Arm Assembly, LMA (2)- 12.

9. The City of Lubbock Traffic Operations Department will be responsible for traffic control for the
contractor, shafts shall not be drilled without Traffic Operations personnel on site.



City of Lubbock, TX
Purchasing and Contract Management

Vendor Acknowledgement Form

In compliance with the Invitation to Bid, the undersigned Bidder having examined the Invitation to Bid,
instructions to bidders, General Conditions of the Agreement, Specifications, and being familiar with the
conditions to be met, hereby submits the following bid for furnishing the material, equipment, labor and
everything necessary for providing the items listed and agrees to deliver said items at the locations and for the
prices set forth on the bid form and/or the bid table associated with this bid.

A bid will be subject to being considered irregular and may be rejected if it shows omissions, alterations of
form, conditional alternate bids, additions or alternates in lieu of the items specified, if the unit prices are
obviously unbalanced (either in excess of or below reasonably expected values), or irregularities of any kind.
The Invitation to Bid is by reference incorporated in this contract.

Where applicable, prices are quoted as: F.O.B. Destination, Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed
Where applicable, delivery days are: Days After Receipt of Order (ARO)

Unless otherwise specified herein, the City may award the bid either item-by—item or on an all-or-
none basis for any item or group of items shown on the bid.

The City of Lubbock is seeking a contract for with one or more contractors. In order to assure adequate
coverage, the City may make multiple awards, selecting multiple vendors to provide the products
desired, if multiple awards are in the best interest of the City. A decision to make a multiple award of
this Bid, however, is an option reserved by the City, based on the needs of the City.

PAYMENT TERMS AND DISCOUNTS - Bidder offers a prompt payment discount of 0 %, net

______

calendar days. Discounts will not be considered in determining low bid. Unless otherwise indicated
on the Bid Form, payment terms will be NET THIRTY DAYS. The City will pay the successful bidder within
thirty days after the receipt of a correct invoice or after the date of acceptance, whichever event occurs later.
Discounts for prompt payment requiring payment by the City within a stipulated number of days will be
interpreted as applying within the stipulated number of calendar days after the date of receipt by the City of a
correct invoice or after the date ofacceptance that meets contract requirements, whichever event occurs later.
Discounts for payment in less than ten days will not be considered.

MOST FAVORED PRICING: The Bidder certifies that the price quoted is not in excess of the lowest price
charged anyone else, including its most favored customer, for like quality and quantity of the
products/services; does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess ofthat normally obtained by the
Bidder on the sale of products/services of like quality and quantity; and does not include any provision for
discounts to selling agents. If at any time during the contract period, the supplier should sell or offer for sale
to any other customer, an equal or less quantity ofsimilar contract products oflike or better quality, at a lower
net price(s) than provided herein, supplier agrees to notify the City and sell same product(s) at the lower
price(s) on all deliveries made during the period in which such lower price(s) is effective.

INTERLOCAL PURCHASiNG (optional): The City desires to make available to other local governmental
entities of the State of Texas, by mutual agreement with the successful bidder, and properly authorized
interlocal purchasing agreements as provided for by the lnterlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791 , Government
Code), the right to purchase the same services, at the prices quoted, for the period ofthis contract. Each bidder
shall indicate on the Bid Form in the space provided below if he/she will honor Political Subdivision orders
in addition to orders from the City of Lubbock. Should these other governmental entities decide to participate
in this contract, would you (the bidder) agree that all terms, conditions, specifications, and pricing would
apply?



City of Lubbock, TX
Traffic Engineering
ITB 22-16624-TF

Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services

Precision Drilling a division of Brown-McKee, Inc. of Lubbock, TX

Qty Unit Extended
# Items (+1-) UoM Price Cost

#1-1 Drilled pier shafts — 36” in diameter 150 LF $ 26.00 3,900.00
#1-2 Drilled pier shafts —48” in diameter 660 LF 31.50 20,790.00
#1-3 Mobilization 20 EA 350.00 7,000.00

Total: $ 31,690.00



Other governmental entities that might have interests in this contract are Frenship Independent School
District, Lubbock Housing Authority, Lubbock County, Lubbock County Hospital District, Lubbock
Independent School District, South Plains Association of Governments, City of Texarkana, Texas Tech
University, West Texas Municipal Power Agency, Lynn County, and City of Wolfforth.

YES_____ NO X

. If you (the bidder) checked YES, the following will apply:
I Governmental entities utilizing Interlocal Agreements for Cooperative Purchasing with the City of

Lubbock will be eligible, but not obligated, to purchase materials/services under the contract(s)
awarded as a result ofthis solicitation. All purchases by governmental entities other than the City of
Lubbock will be billed directly to that governmental entity and paid by that governmental entity. City
ofLubbock will not be responsible for another governmental entity’s debts. Each governmental entity
will order their own materials/service as needed.

ADDENDA

Bidder acknowledges receipt of addenda issued in regard to this solicitation:

AddendaNo. N/A Date N/A
Addenda No.

_______

Date_________
Addenda No.

_______

Date_________
AddendaNo.

______

Date________

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

I, the undersigned Bidder certify that the insurance requirements contained in this bid document have been
reviewed by me and my Jnsurance Agent/Broker. If I am awarded this contract by the City of Lubbock, I will
be able to, within ten (10) business days after being notified of such award by the City of Lubbock, furnish a
valid insurance certificate to the City meeting all ofthe requirements defined in this bid.

Ifthe time requirement specified above is not met, the City has the right to reject this proposal and award the
contract to another contractor. If you have any questions concerning these requirements, please contact the
Director of Purchasing & Contract Management for the City of Lubbock at (806) 775-2572.

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

Federal Law (A-I 02 Common Rule and 0MB Circular A-I I 0) prohibits non-Federal entities from contracting
with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose
principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or
services equal to or in excess of $25,000 and all non-procurement transactions (e.g., sub-awards to sub-
recipients).

Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their
organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.
Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization and
its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.
I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are suspended
or debarred by a Federal agency.



TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2252.152

The undersigned representative of the undersigned company or business, being an adult over the age of
eighteen (1 8) years ofage, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252. 152, certify that
the company named above is not listed on the website ofthe Comptroller ofthe State ofTexas concerning the
listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.05 1 , Section 807.05 1 or Section 2253. 1 53. 1 further
certify that should the above-named company enter into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the
website ofthe Comptroller ofthe State ofTexas, which do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist
Organization, I will immediately notify the City of Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2271.002

Company hereby certifies the following:
1 . Company does not boycott Israel; and
2. Company will not boycott Israel during the term ofthe contract.

The following definitions apply to this state statute:
(1) “Boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any
action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with
Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not
include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and
(2) “Company” means an organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary,
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exists
to make a profit.

This Certification is required from a Company ifthe Company has 10 or more full-time employees and
the contract for goods or services (which includes contracts formed through purchase orders) has a
value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental
entity.

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 2274

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the
contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or
firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 ofthe Texas Government Code
does not apply to the contract.

IfContractor is a company with I 0 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least
$1 00,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not
have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade
association; and will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade
association.

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, boycott
energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 ofthe Texas Government Code does
not apply to the contract.

If Contractor is a company with 1 0 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least
$1 00,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not
boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This
verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these requirements
are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance,
incurrence, or management ofdebt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment
of funds.



FEDERAL AND STATE SAFETY REGULATIONS

Contractor shall comply with all federal and state safety regulation including but not limited to Occupational,
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and the Department of Workforce Development (DWD)
regulations. This agreement includes incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms. The
preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by the Department of
Transportation (DOT), whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual
provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220. 1 F, are hereby incorporated by reference.
Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the
event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any
act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any requests which would cause Bus to be in violation
ofthe FTA terms and conditions.

All Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) rules and regulations must be followed by the Contractor.

MASTER AGREEMENT

For Federal Transit Administration Agreements authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, Title 23, United States
Code (Highways), the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users,
as amended by the SAFETEA-LU Technical Corrections Act of 2008, the Transportation Equity Act for the
2 1 st Century, as amended, the National Capital Transportation Act of 1969, as amended, the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. I I I -5, February 1 7, 2009, or other Federal laws that FTA
administers.

The Master Agreement can be found in its entirety on the City of Lubbock website www.ci.lubbock.tx.us

iNCOMPLETE INFORMATION

Failure to complete or provide any of the information requested in this Invitation to Bid, including
references, and/or additional information as information as indicated, may results in disqualification by
reason of “non-responsiveness”.



CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

In compliance with this solicitation, the undersigned bidder, having examined the bid documents,
instructions to bidders, documents associated with the invitation to bid, and being familiar with the
conditions to be met has reviewed the above information regarding:

. Insurance Requirements

. Suspension and Debarment Certification

. Texas Government Code Section 2252.152

. Texas Government Code Section 2271.002

. Texas Government Code 2274

. Federal and State Regulations

. Master Agreement

SUBMISSION INFORMATION

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this
portion may result in bid rejection.

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY.J’!eCISIOfl Drilling a division of Brown-Mckee Inc. a

corporation organized under the laws of the State of__Texas , or a partnership consisting of

-“
or individual trading as

__________________

of

the Cityof Lubbock

Tax IDNo.: 75-0906414

Address: 906 E. Slaton Road

City: Lubbock State: Texas zip:__79404

M/WBE Firm:JET - Woman - Black American - Native American
Hispanic American Asian Pacific American Other (Specify)

Date: 06/1512022

Officer Name and Title: Jeremy Duhon Vice-President

Business Telephone Number 8064448623 FAX:_80644&1 681

complete the information below.

- must sign by hand

E-mail Address: jeremyd@brownmckee.com



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 22-16624-TF 

Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 29 & June 5, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from May 29 to June 16, 2022. 

3 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

14 vendors viewed using Bonfire.com.  

14 vendors downloaded the documents. 

13 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 
 
 

 



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

MH Civil Construction-ADA Ramps 27,490$
Traffic Signal Equipment 168,525

Agenda Items July 12, 2022
Traffic Signal Pier Drilling 10,563

Encumbered/Expended To Date 206,578

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Underground Boring Services 43,443
Traffic Signal Equipment 120,214

  Remaining Appropriation 163,657

Total Appropriation 370,235$               

92742
Traffic Signal FY 21-22 through FY 25-26

City of Lubbock, TX 
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail 
July 12, 2022



Project Name Traffic Signal FY21-22 through FY25-26 Project Number 92742

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Traffic Operations

David Bragg

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

Install signals at un-signalized intersections and school zones as warranted, upgrade new controllers, and perform necessary repairs.  

Major repairs such as replacing crushed conduit and wiring, rebuilding failing signal arm assemblies, and exchanging cabinets and 

signal arm assemblies that have been damaged is not included in the Department's maintenance budget or in the Traffic Signal Upgrade 

project.

Start Date: 10/1/2021

Bid Date - Design: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design: N/A

Project Start Date - Design: N/A

Project End Date - Design: N/A

Bid Date - Construction: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Construction: N/A

Project Start Date - Construction: 10/1/2021

Project End Date - Construction: 9/30/2026

Project Justification

The project provides funding for new signals and school zones designed and constructed in-house.  The project will also be utilized to 

upgrade existing traffic signals requiring major repairs.  Public safety is a major factor considered when installing and maintaining 

traffic signals and school zones.

Project History

$350,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  350,000  0  0  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  350,000  0  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  350,000  0  0  0  350,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  350,000  0  0  350,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  350,000  0  350,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  350,000  0  1,750,000 



 AI# 10838 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Council to accept,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a General Warranty Deed as described in Exhibit A, associated
with the transfer of various parcels of land from the Urban Renewal Agency to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas. 

Item Summary
This transfer of vacant lots from the Urban Renewal Agency to the City of Lubbock, is for multiple lots
described in Attachment A attached to the General Warranty Deed.

Urban Renewal Agency approved the transfer at their Regular Board Meeting on June 21, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
This transfer of vacant lots has no fiscal impact to the General Fund.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director
Urban Renewal Agency Trustee 

Attachments
Resolution 
Deed & Exhibit "A" 











 AI# 10834 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a lease agreement, with
Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero, at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock currently has a lease agreement with Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero for
multiple properties located on the east side of the Airport. Lubbock Aero wishes to continue to lease the
Executive Terminal and two Hangar Buildings under a new lease. Lubbock Aero is leasing the premises
for the purpose of conducting commercial aviation activities of a fixed based operator (FBO).  Rentals
are as follows:
  

Premises Monthly
Revenue

Annual
Revenue

Executive Terminal: 5,240 sq. ft. @ $6.17
per sq. ft. per year:  $2,694.23 $32,330.80

Hangar Building #108: 11,280 sq. ft. @
$1.618 per sq. ft. per year: $1,608.34 $19,300.08

Hangar Building #302: 11,000 sq. ft. @
$1.618 per sq. ft. per year: $1,483.17 $17,798.00

Total Land Area: 64,312 sq. ft. @ $.2034
per year:  $1,711.78 $13,081.06

Total Apron Area: 100,900 sq. ft. @
$.2034 per year:  $1,711.78 $20,541.37

The rental rate will be adjusted annually by the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

The term of the agreement will be for a period of 10 years commencing on the execution of this
agreement and ending on July 31, 2032.

The term is commensurate with the amount of capital investment made by the lessee in the leased
premises, consistent with the airport required FBO Capital Investment Schedule. Lubbock Aero will
expend no less than $1,000,000 to improve the Executive Terminal, $100,000 to improve Hangar #108,
and $100,000 to improve Hangar #302.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend a lease agreement with Abilene Aero, Inc.
d/b/a Lubbock Aero at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 

 

Fiscal Impact



The lease will generate approximately $103,050.51 in annual revenue.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero 
Lease Agreement Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero 





































































 AI# 10835 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a lease agreement, with
Robert Madden Industries, Ltd., for building a new hangar at the Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport.

Item Summary
Robert Madden Industries, Ltd. requests a lease agreement for 46,941 square feet of land to construct an
8,100 square foot hangar on the west side of the airport. The rental rate is $0.249 per square foot, per
year, making the annual rental $11,688.31, to be paid in monthly installments of $974.03. The rental rate
will be adjusted annually by the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The term shall be for 30 years and shall
begin the day the agreement is executed by the City Council. The term is commensurate with the
amount of capital investment made by the lessee in the leased premises, consistent with the airports
required Aircraft Storage Operator Capital Investment Schedule.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend a lease agreement with Robert Madden
Industries, Ltd., to construct a new hangar at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Fiscal Impact
The lease will generate an additional annual revenue of $11,688.31.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Robert Madden Industries, Ltd. 
Lease Agreement Robert Madden Industries, Ltd. 



































































 AI# 10836 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a non-aeronautical lease
agreement, with Marco Steel & Aluminum Co., for the lease of warehouses and premises for storing and
processing steel and steel products at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Marco Steel & Aluminum Co. has leased 3 warehouse buildings and associated land at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport since 2011, and is requesting continuation under a new lease
agreement.  The building rental rate is $1.40 per square foot, per year, making the annual rental $67,200,
to be paid in monthly installments of $5,600. The land rental rate is $0.249 per square foot, per year,
making the annual rental $4,033.80 to be paid in monthly installments of $336.15.

The rental rate will be adjusted annually by the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The initial term of the
agreement will be for a period of 5 years, commencing on the execution of this agreement and ending on
July 31, 2027, with the option to extend the agreement for 2 additional three-year periods.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend a non-aeronautical lease agreement with the
Marco Steel & Aluminum Co.

Fiscal Impact
The lease will generate non-aeronautical annual revenue of $71,233.80.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Marco Steel & Aluminum 
Marco Steel Lease Agreement 





























































 AI# 10789 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Public Works Contract 15261, with Teinert Construction, for services related to the
construction of the Municipal Parking Garage.

Item Summary
This is Amendment No. 1 to the contract for General Contractor services for the Municipal Parking
Garage located at 1401 Avenue L, Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. The contract provides services
and consultation during the construction phase of the project for the parking garage.

In April 2020, the City released a Request for Proposal for General Contractor services, and Teinert
Construction was approved by the City Council for RFP 20-15261-MA. The City used the Competitive
Sealed Proposal procurement method as authorized by the Texas Legislature and further defined by
Texas Government Code Section 2269.

The established Contract 15261 is in the amount of $6,760,236.00.  Amendment No. 1 increases the
contract amount by $187,644.15, which would make the revised contract amount $6,947,880.15 of the
$7,961,294 available for this project.  The increase is for additional work requested by the City for
construction costs associated with elements excluded from the original design including, but not limited
to: temporary construction, utilities, fire suppression, and electrical and security infrastructure.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 for $187,644.15, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92672, Municipal Parking
Garage.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Wesley D. Everett, Director of Facilities 

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 15261 Amendment 1 
Original Contract and Resolution - Teinert 
92672 Budget Summary 









 

Exhibit A 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #004 
(Teinert PCO 003)
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  2/26/2021 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Price to furnish and install four enlarged piers directed by engineer due to utility proximity and rock encountered 
while drilling.

Submitted By:  Teinert              Attachments:  Teinert PCO 003

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
 

$  - 35,834.00

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 35,834.00
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

02/26/2021

Owner

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER
4009 Clovis Road DATE: 02/11/2021
Lubbock, Texas 79415
(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 003
DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED: Price to furnish and install four enlarged piers directed by engineer due to utility proximity and rock

encountered while drilling.

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost
Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description
Original footing Credit 1 (13,010.00) (13,010)
Pier Concrete and Labor 1 24,800.00 24,800
Pier Drilling 1 14,960.00 14,960
Haul off 1 3,600.00 3,600
Re-drilling A6 Pier (9' Diameter) 1 3,000.00 3,000
Additional rebar 1,610.00 1,610

- - 0
0

Subtotal - - - 34,960
Payroll burden 38.00% -
Subtotal 34,960
Insurance and Bonds 2.50% 874
Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% -

TOTAL $ 35,834

Additional Days Requested 0

New Total Contractual Days 327

APPROVED:

DATE:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



RFC Total $   33,350.00

Please respond by:  02/09/2021

Bobby Law Garrett Presnell

MKS Construction LLC dba Earth Works Teinert Commercial Building

Earth Works Request for Change
5939 E. Hwy 62  
Lubbock, TX 79403

RFC Number:  3
Date:  02/09/2021

  

Regarding:

Cost of Switching from footings and columns to 30' deep piers for the A11, B11, and C11 locations, and re-drilling the 
pier at A6 at 9' diameter due being unable to bell.

To: Job Site:

Teinert Commercial Building Lubbock Parking Garage

4009 Clovis Road  
Lubbock, TX 79415

14th & Ave. L  
Lubbock, TX

Requested By: Phone: E-mail:

Bobby Law (806) 722-0262 bobby@earthworkstx.com

Recipients: Phone: E-mail:

Garrett Presnell (806) 744-2801 garrettpresnell@teinert.com

Requested Change: Change to Contract

Deduct for Original Footings/Columns Labor, Materials (19 CY Concrete), Equipment 
(Excavation/Backfilling)

$  -13,010.00

Piers Material (123 CY Concrete) and Labor $  24,800.00

Pier Drilling $  14,960.00

Haul Off $  3,600.00

Re-Drilling A6 Pier at 9' Diameter $  3,000.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



Perez Rebar Construction                                                                                Invoice
P.O. Box 72                                                                                                 
Anton, Tx 79313
(806)-442-1192

                                                                                                                                                         

       Parking Garage 
Item              Description                                    Qty           Rate         Amount

labor for fabrication of large 
piers on north end of project 

               

       Fabricate Rings
             48 6’-6”
             22 4’-6”

 

     8 Workers

        

         70 

 $25.00 Per Hour 
& Per Worker

        

     $3.00 Each 

     $1,400.00

        

       $210.00

Tax    0

Total $1,610.00

Date                   Invoice #
2/10/21         01

BILL To

Teinert Commercial Building/A-1

4009 Clovis Rd.

Lubbock, Tx 79415 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Exhibit B 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #013
Teinert PCO 015
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  3/1/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Redesign and installation of fire suppression system.

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                       Attachments: CCR 013 (PCO 015) Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  58,330.40

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ 58,330.40
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

3/1/2022

BJackson
Text Box
-

BJackson
Text Box
-



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 02/03/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 015

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

fire suppression 58,330.40

0

0

0

0

-        -        0

0

Subtotal -        -        -        58,330              

Payroll burden 38.00% -                    

Subtotal 58,330              

Insurance and Bonds 2.50% -                    

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% -                    

TOTAL 58,330.40$       

Additional Days Requested 35 days from approval 

APPROVED:

DATE:

Redesign and installation of fire suppression system. Sent by email to Parkhill 

on 1/27/22



Estimate
DATE

1/28/2022

ESTIMATE #

K3367-5

NAME / ADDRESS

Teinert Construction
1402 Crickets Ave
Lubbock, Texas 79401
City of Lubbock Parking Garage

Casteel Automatic Fire Protection, Inc

P.O BOX 30535
AMARILLO, TX 79120-0535
PHONE (806) 372-9281
FAX (806) 374-8718

PROJECT

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

Change Order; Additional Labor and Material for standpipe system
redesign.

6" Schedule 40 per ft. (current price) 587.93 28.90 16,991.18
4" Schedule 40 per ft. (current Price) 263.51 20.95 5,520.53
4" Schedule 40 per ft. (purchased 4-2021) ( Credit) -117.67 8.74 -1,028.44
6" Ring 75 6.00 450.00
½" Drop-In Anchors 75 1.36 102.00
½" All Threaded Rod per ft. 267 1.06 283.02
6" RASCO Grooved Butterfly Valve / with Tamper Switch 5 666.39 3,331.95
6" Grooved Lt. Wt. Coupling 99 17.26 1,708.74
4" Grooved Lt. Wt. Coupling (credit) -22 13.30 -292.60
6" Black Grooved 90° 21 50.06 1,051.26
4" Black Grooved 90° (credit) -3 18.30 -54.90
6" Grooved Tee 4 80.49 321.96
6" Grooved Cap 5 22.50 112.50
4" Grooved Cap (credit) -4 22.50 -90.00
4" x 2" Grooved Reducer Coupling 5 74.64 373.20
4" x 6" Grooved Stubbies 3 34.92 104.76
4" x 2½" Threaded Weld-O-Let 16 13.78 220.48
4" x 2½" Threaded Weld-O-Let (credit) -12 13.78 -165.36
2½" FHV-Brass with Cap/Chain 16 139.10 2,225.60
2½" FHV-Brass with Cap/Chain (credit) -12 139.10 -1,669.20
2½" x 0-4" Nipple 16 22.28 356.48
2½" x 0-4" Nipple (credit) -12 22.28 -267.36
2" x 0-3" Nipple G-T 5 15.54 77.70
2" x 0-3" Nipple 5 6.78 33.90
2" CI 90° Ell 5 19.56 97.80
2" Drain Valve 5 175.51 877.55
2" CI Plug 5 6.84 34.20
1" x 0-4" Nipple 10 3.99 39.90
1" x 4" Threaded Weld-O-Let 5 4.28 21.40
1"x1"x½" CI Tee 5 9.42 47.10

Page 1



Estimate
DATE

1/28/2022

ESTIMATE #

K3367-5

NAME / ADDRESS

Teinert Construction
1402 Crickets Ave
Lubbock, Texas 79401
City of Lubbock Parking Garage

Casteel Automatic Fire Protection, Inc

P.O BOX 30535
AMARILLO, TX 79120-0535
PHONE (806) 372-9281
FAX (806) 374-8718

PROJECT

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

250 PSI Air Pressure Gauge 5 44.42 222.10
1" CI Plug 5 2.60 13.00
1" Globe Valve 5 48.61 243.05
1" x 0-4" Nipple (credit) -8 3.99 -31.92
1" x 4" Threaded Weld-O-Let (credit) -4 4.28 -17.12
1"x1"x1½" CI Tee (credit) -4 9.42 -37.68
250 PSI Air Pressure Gauge (credit) -4 44.42 -177.68
1" CI Plug (credit) -4 3.40 -13.60
1" Globe Valve (credit) -4 48.61 -194.44
2" x 4" Threaded Weld-O-Let 10 13.82 138.20
2" x 0-3" Nipple 5 6.78 33.90
2" Drain Valves 5 175.51 877.55
2" CI Plug 5 6.84 34.20
6x2½  6-way-Brass Body 1 7,793.50 7,793.50
4" x 2½" x2½" Standard FDC (credit) -4 825.00 -3,300.00
6" Grooved Swing Check Valve 1 444.16 444.16
4" Grooved Swing Check Valve (credit) -4 186.98 -747.92
¾" x 6" Threaded Weld-O-Let 4 4.32 17.28
¾" x 4" Threaded Weld-O-Let (credit) -3 2.19 -6.57
¾" Street Ell 4 4.05 16.20
¾" Street Ell (credit) -3 4.05 -12.15
¾" Threaded Ball Drip Valve 4 9.25 37.00
¾" Threaded Ball Drip Valve (credit) -3 9.29 -27.87
Schedule 40 Pipe Sleeve 6 49.50 297.00
Brackets (angle iron) 4 96.52 386.08
Core Drill Bits 1 225.00 225.00
6" Galvanized CI Solid Wall Plate 6 28.75 172.50
6" Riser Clamp 4 36.20 144.80

Additional Labor
Design labor per man hour 48 24.00 1,152.00
42% Labor Burden 42.00% 483.84

Page 2



Estimate
DATE

1/28/2022

ESTIMATE #

K3367-5

NAME / ADDRESS

Teinert Construction
1402 Crickets Ave
Lubbock, Texas 79401
City of Lubbock Parking Garage

Casteel Automatic Fire Protection, Inc

P.O BOX 30535
AMARILLO, TX 79120-0535
PHONE (806) 372-9281
FAX (806) 374-8718

PROJECT

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

Shop labor per man hour 48 21.00 1,008.00
42% Labor Burden 42.00% 423.36

Field labor per man hour 176 26.00 4,576.00
42% Labor Burden 42.00% 1,921.92

Subtotal 46,909.04
15% OH & Profit 15.00% 7,036.36

Lift Rental  1-Month 1 450.00 450.00

Fork Lift Rental 1-Month 1 2,400.00 2,400.00

Subtotal 2,850.00
10% Profit 10.00% 285.00

Estimated Freight Charges 1 1,250.00 1,250.00

**Deduct for steel body in lieu of brass Fire Dept Connection
($2240.00)
Brass body 8-10 week s lead time; Steel body 4-6 weeks lead time
No Sales Tax 0.00% 0.00

Page 3

$58,330.40



 

Exhibit C 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #014R1
Teinert PCO 013
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Price to furnish and install temporary handrail and ramp for access out of the garage due to North plaza rework. 

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 013 Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 6,000.00

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 6,000.00
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 02/11/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 013 Temporary Ramp 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Concrete 3,250.00          3,250

Handrail 4,950.00          4,950

0

Subtotal -        -         -                      8,200         

Payroll burden 38.00% -             

Subtotal 8,200         

Insurance and Bonds 2.50%

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% -             

TOTAL 8,200$       

Additional Days Requested 

APPROVED:

DATE:

Price to furnish and install temporary handrail and ramp for access out of the garage due to 

North plaza rework. 

5/27/22

$6,000

$6,000

-$2200Credit by Teinert

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 
 

Earth Works 
5939 E. Hwy 62 

 Request for Change 
RFC Number: 17 

Lubbock, TX 79403  Date: 1/18/2022 

Regarding:   

Temporary ramp at North end of 
Garage  

  

To: 
 

Job Site: 

Teinert Construction  Lubbock Parking Garage 

4009 Clovis Road 
Lubbock, TX 79415 

 14th & Ave. L 
Lubbock, TX 

Requested By: Phone:  E-mail: 

Bobby Law (806) 722-0262 bobby@earthworkstx.com 

Recipients: Phone:  E-mail: 

Garrett Presnell (806) 744-2801 garrettpresnell@teinert.com 

Requested Change:  Change to Contract 

Add ramp  $ 3,250.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
Bobby Law Garrett Presnell 

MKS Construction LLC dba Earth Works Teinert Construction 

RFC Total $  3,250.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Exhibit D 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #015
Teinert PCO 006
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Price to add spot footings and pilasters for garage support not originally sown on plans. Items addressed in SI 001. 

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 006 Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 9,471.00

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 9,471.00
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 02/18/21

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 006

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Spot footings 5,240.00$   

Pilasters 4,231.00$   

0

Subtotal -                      9,471          
Payroll burden 38.00% -             

Subtotal 9,471          
Insurance and Bonds 2.50%
Fee 5.00%

TOTAL 9,471$        

Additional Days Requested 

APPROVED:

DATE:

Price to add spot footings and pilasters for garage support not originally shown on plans. Items 

addressed in SI 001. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



RFC Total $   5,240.00

Please respond by:  01/15/2021

Bobby Law Garrett Presnell

MKS Construction LLC dba Earth Works Teinert Commercial Building

Earth Works Request for Change
5939 E. Hwy 62  
Lubbock, TX 79403

RFC Number:  4
Date:  02/12/2021

  

Regarding:

(2) Additional F8 Spot Footings at the Elevator Pits/Stairwells

To: Job Site:

Teinert Commercial Building Lubbock Parking Garage

4009 Clovis Road  
Lubbock, TX 79415

14th & Ave. L  
Lubbock, TX

Requested By: Phone: E-mail:

Bobby Law (806) 722-0262 bobby@earthworkstx.com

Recipients: Phone: E-mail:

Bobby Law (806) 722-0262 bobby@earthworkstx.com

Garrett Presnell (806) 744-2801 garrettpresnell@teinert.com

Requested Change: Change to Contract

Labor, Materials, and Equipment to Install (2) Additional F8 Footings $  5,240.00

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 
 

Earth Works Request for Change 
5939 E. Hwy 62 
Lubbock, TX 79403 

RFC Number: 4-2 
Date: 02/16/2021 

 
 

 
(2)Additional Pilasters at Grid Lines D/10 & D/3 

 
To: Job Site: 

Teinert Commercial Building Lubbock Parking Garage 

4009 Clovis Road 
Lubbock, TX 79415 

14th & Ave. L 
Lubbock, TX 

 

Requested By: Phone: E-mail: 

Bobby Law (806) 722-0262 bobby@earthworkstx.com 

 

Recipients: Phone: E-mail: 

Garrett Presnell (806) 744-2801 garrettpresnell@teinert.com 

 

 
Concrete and Forming Materials $ 3,851.00 

Equipment $ 380.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Please respond by:  01/17/2021 

  
Bobby Law Garrett Presnell 

MKS Construction LLC dba Earth Works Teinert Commercial Building 

RFC Total $  4,231.00 

Requested Change: Change to Contract 

Regarding: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Exhibit E 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #01
Teinert PCO 018
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 01

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    21

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 3,629.53

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 3,629.53
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

Arc Flash Coordination Study required for tying into existing panel.

8 Breakdown

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 05/26/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 018

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Coordination Study 3,541.00      3,541.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-        -        0.00

0.00

Subtotal -        -        3,541           3,541.00

Payroll burden 38.00% 0.00

Subtotal 3,541.00

Insurance and Bonds 2.50% 88.53

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% 0.00

TOTAL 3,629.53

Additional Days Requested 3 week lead time

APPROVED:

DATE:

Arc Flash Coordination Study Required for Tieing into existing Panel. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Proposed Change Order 1

TITLE: Coordination Study for Elevator Arc Flash DATE: 2/14/2022

PROJECT: COL Parking Garage JOB: 1517

TO: Garrett Presnell CONTRACT NO:

Teinert Construction

Coordination Study for Elevator Arc Flash

Project Manager 1.00 65.69$          65.69$                      

Superintendent 2.00 45.00$          90.00$                      

Superintendent OT 0.00 45.00$          -$                          

Foreman/Journeyman 0.00 30.00$          -$                          

Foreman/Journeyman OT 0.00 45.00$          -$                          

Labor Burden 155.69$          50% 77.85$                      

Total Labor 233.54$                    

Materials 2,845.81$                

Equipment NC -$                          

Subtotal 3,079.35$                

OH/Profit 15.00% 461.90$                    

Bond 0.00% -$                          

Total 3,541.25$                

Sell $3,541.00

 Ryan Brown Garrett Presnell

Date: Date:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



PAGE 1   OF   3 

 QUOTATION   PRINTED  4/21/2022 10:22:00 AM 

 Quotation 

 Q2C Number: 43558516  Quote Number: 1  Change Order Rev Number: 2 

Project Name: MUNICIPAL PARKING GARAGE 

Project Sub-Name:  

Project Location: LUBBOCK, TX 

Quote Name: ADD STUDY 

Through Addenda Number: 1 

Bid Date: 1/1/1901 

Consultant / Specifier: ACME ELECTRIC CORP 

Contractor / Installer: ACME ELECTRIC CORP 

Sales Representative: ROSS VALIGURA 

Conditions of Sale
This Quotation is subject to Schneider Electric USA, Inc.'s published Conditions of Sale 

Payment Terms:  STANDARD  

Billing Type(s):   

Currency:  US DOLLARS 

Quote Markings

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



PAGE 2   OF   3 

 Q2C Number: 43558516  Quote Number: 1  Change Order Rev Number: 2 
 Project Name:  MUNICIPAL PARKING GARAGE  Quote Name: ADD STUDY 

 Item 
 No.  Qty.  Catalog Number / Details 

 QUOTATION   PRINTED  4/21/2022 10:22:00 AM 

027-00 1 Designation: study 
SRVINAAARCETO 
Eng Std - SC,TCC,AF & AF Bdy Lbl 
We are pleased to quote Short Circuit, Time 
 Current Coordination, Arc Flash, & Arc 
 Flash Labels (Brady) Studies per BOM and 
 specifications with the following 
 exception(s)/clarification(s). 

Exception(s): 
 This quote does not include setting/testing 

 overcurrent devices.  Please contact 
 QUOTES_SYSTEM_STUDIES/US/Schneider for a 
 quote to set/test the breakers. 

 This quote does not include label 
    installation. 
Clarification(s): 
 This quotation is for a power system study 

 performed in accordance with the 
   specification (number 26 05 73.10) 
 The scope of work for this study is limited 

 to new Square D brand equipment and 
 pertinent existing equipment necessary 
 for the analysis to be completed. 

 Data collection shall be provided by the 
 electrical contractor at no cost to 

   Schneider Electric USA, Inc. 
 Engineering services included in this quote 

 will be performed by a firm licensed to 
 perform engineering in the jurisdiction 
 where the services are offered. 

 If a SC analysis is included in the study 
 scope, intent is to deliver a SC 
 evaluation table prior to the date of 
 equipment release to manufacturing.  The 
 completion of the analysis and report 
 will typically be targeted around the 
 ship dates of SWBD/MCC. 

 Reports will be revised to reflect as-built 
 conditions at no additional charge, 
 provided the size and scope of the 
 changes do not vary from the original 
 design layout and the request is made 
 within three months of study 
 commissioning. 

 Customer is responsible for supplying 
 necessary data (see summary below) in 
 order to complete the study.  When 
 provided with customer and utility 
 contact information, we can assist in 
 obtaining this data. 

 The customer is responsible for 
 communicating any changes that may impact 

   the results of the analysis. 
 *** If specific data is not received, the 

 SC and TCC analyses will be performed 
 based on a conservative set of 
 assumptions (if applicable), AF will be 
 excluded.*** 

Summary: intended for SC & TCC (not 
  all-inclusive): 
Summary: intended for SC, TCC, & AF (not 
 all-inclusive): 
1. One-line diagram showing the scope of
the system study.

2. All of the cable data - lengths, wire

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



PAGE 3   OF   3 

 Q2C Number: 43558516  Quote Number: 1  Change Order Rev Number: 2 
 Project Name:  MUNICIPAL PARKING GARAGE  Quote Name: ADD STUDY 

 Item 
 No.  Qty.  Catalog Number / Details 

 QUOTATION   PRINTED  4/21/2022 10:22:00 AM 

 sizes, etc 
3. The available short-circuit current from
the power company at the point of supply.

4. The main transformer information with
primary fuse rating or breaker settings
(ignore if Schneider Electric is
supplying the transformer).

5. Generator electrical data and breaker(s)
details if applicable.

6. Automatic transfer switch short-circuit
current rating or catalog number if
applicable.

7. Submittals for paralleling gear or
equipment associated with the emergency
or UPS system.

8. Description of starter type and location
of any motors greater than 50HP.

9. Project study specifications (ignore if
specifications were provided at the time
we quoted this job).

If the study needs to be converted before the 
 equipment, please contact 
 QUOTES_SYSTEM_STUDIES/US/Schneider to 
 assist in conversion. 

Following devices included in study: 
 Qty 001 LV Transformers 
 Qty 003 Panelboards 
 Qty 1 Existing Equipment (Not Lineups) 
 Sel Rev: (20160317/20160317) 
 Tra Rev: 4/20/2022 7:02:23 PM/ 7/27/2021 

  

 0.00 

 0.00 

 2,845.81 

Change to Total Authorized: 

Change to Warranty: 

Change to FOB: 

Change to Order Value:   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Exhibit F 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #017
Teinert PCO 020
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Price to polish floors and paint the tunnel elevator lobby.

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 020 Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 11,160.71

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 11,160.71
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 06/13/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 020

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Polished floors 6,970.00 6,970.00

Final Clean & Superintendent 1,600.00

Paint Lobby 1,800.00 1,800.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-       -       0.00

0.00

Subtotal -       -       -               10,370.00

Overhead and Profit 5.00% 518.50

Subtotal 10,888.50

Insurance and Bonds 2.50% 272.21

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% 0.00

TOTAL 11,160.71

Additional Days Requested 0

APPROVED:

DATE:

Owner meeting was held on 6/7/22 with these selections. It was asked to polish floors 

and paint the tunnel elevator lobby. Polish will not be uniform due to existing floor. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



Unit Amount

$6,970.00

Thank You!

Due to areas of uneven concrete there will be 

patches of exposed aggregate at random 

locations.

To grind clean and top polish basement 

corridor from parking garage to Citizens 

Tower.

Terms:  FULL PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT                                               
1 1/2% SERVICE CHARGE TO BE ADDED EVERY 30 DAYS OF INSTALLATION, ON 
OUTSTANDING BALANCES.  A 3% SERVICE CHARGE WILL BE ADDED TO ALL 
PAYMENTS MADE BY CREDIT CARD

Quantity Description Price

   --  City of Lubbock Parking Garage Corridor
Customer 
Order Number
Salesperson

Jerrod Hobbs

Attn:  Garrett Presnell
via

To: Teinert Commercial
Date

June 10, 2022

LVR Commercial Flooring
8518 Urbana Avenue Telephone 806-866-9797
Lubbock, Texas 79424 Fax 806-866-0084

PROPOSAL

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



James Padgett Painting, Inc 

7204 Joliet, Suite 5 

Lubbock, Texas 79423 

Invoice 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Description Prior % Curr % Total% 

Parking Garage:   Tunnel Lobby  
 

 

 

Prime and paint walls and ceiling in Lobby  

  

 

 

 

100.00% 

 

 

 

 

100.00% 

 

james@jamespadgett.com   (806) 549-2366 

P.O. No. 

Bill To

Teinert Commercial Building Services 

4009 Clovis Road 
Lubbock, TX 79415 

Total $1,800.00 

Date Invoice # 

6/10/2022 5776 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Exhibit G 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #018
Teinert PCO 016
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

Price to change glass to match PD selection. Meeting was held on 10/21/21 and this selection was made. 

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 016 Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    0

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 14,329.50

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 14,329.50
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 02/08/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 016

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Changed Glass to PD Glass 13,980.00    13,980.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-       -       0.00

0.00

Subtotal -       -       13,980         13,980.00

Payroll burden 38.00% 0.00

Subtotal 13,980.00

Insurance and Bonds 2.50% 349.50

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% 0.00

TOTAL 14,329.50

Additional Days Requested 0

APPROVED:

DATE:

Price to add change glass to match PD selection. Meeting was held on 10/21/21 and 

this selection was made. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



JLH COMMERCIAL CONCEPTS INC dba 

 
 

COMMERCIAL DIVISION 

PO BOX 2588 

WEATHERFORD, TX 76086 

817-550-6032 OFFICE  
Change Order Request 

 

Change Order Number:  1 
 

DATE: 10/21/21      
PROJECT:  20118.00jc – Lubbock Municipal Parking Garage 
LOCATION:  1401 Avenue L, Lubbock TX 79401 
 
ATT:  Garrett Presnell, 806.778.1141, garrett@teinert.com 
 
Scope Of Work:     
Low-Iron Option: 
Add to furnish and install 1” Guardian SNX 51/23 Ultra-Clear + Ultra-Clear Insulated Tempered Glass ILO 1” 
Solarban 90 Clear Low-E (#2) + Clear Tempered Insulated Glass 
 
Note:  The increase also includes the manufacturing upcharges due to market volatility pressure from the 

“global pandemic”  
   

Total CO #1:  $13,980.00 

 
 

 Original Contract Amount 
                        

$110,240.00 

 Previously Authorized Change Orders $0.00 

Pending This Change Order Request #1 $13,980.00 

  

 New Contract Amount Including Change Order #1 $124,220.00  

 

 
Approved By:_____________________________ Please Print:________________________ 
   (Signature) 
 
Date:_____________ 

 

 

Requested By: 
Jane Chism 
Chief Estimator 
Jane@unitedglasscd.com 
Office: 817-550-6032 

Cell: 817-301-6951 
Pg. 1 of 1 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5

mailto:garrett@teinert.com
mailto:Jane@unitedglasscd.com


 

Exhibit H 



 

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST #01
Teinert PCO 019
PROJECT:  (Name and Address) DATE:  6/17/2022 Owner

CONTRACT DATE: 08/13/2019 Architect CoL Municipal Parking Garage
ARCHITECT’S PROJECT 
NUMBER: 03.8717.19

Contractor

TO CONTRACTOR: 
Teinert Commercial Building
4009 Clovis Road
Lubbock, Texas 79415

OWNER’S PROJECT NUMBER:
14856

Other

Please submit an itemized quotation for changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time incidental to proposed modification to the Contract 
Documents described herein.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER NOR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED 
HEREIN UNTIL APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

Description:  (Written description of the work) 

The existing breaker called out in the coordination study will have to be replaced. If not replaced, the main power 
feed to Citizens Tower could be tripped.

Submitted By:  Garrett Presnell                                                         Attachments: PCO 019 Breakdown  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSE:
Additional days requested for this CCR:    21

Add to /  Credit      Contract Sum $

Credit / Deduct      Contingency
             Owner    CMAR      

$  - 5,273.63

 Credit / Deduct     Allowance $
(Name of Allowance)

TOTAL CCR $ - 5,273.63
Attachment:  Breakdown

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE REQUEST APPROVAL
When signed by Owner and upon receipt of approved document by the Contractor, the Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) 
described above.  If CCR is changing the Contract Sum or GMP by cost or time, an official Change Order on AIA G701 will be 
executed and distributed.

Approved Additional Time

By: Date:
(Signature)

6/17/2022

7 019

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



TEINERT COMMERCIAL BUILDING SERVICES PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER

4009 Clovis Road DATE: 05/26/22

Lubbock, Texas 79415

(806) 744-2801     FAX (806) 744-2401

PROJECT: City Of Lubbock Parking Garage 

PROPOSAL REQUEST NO. PCO# 019

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED:

Unit Cost Unit Cost Unit Cost

Item Quantity Unit Labor Labor Material Material Sub Sub Total

Description

Breaker Replacement 5,145.00      5,145.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-        -        0.00

0.00

Subtotal -        -        5,145           5,145.00

Payroll burden 38.00% 0.00

Subtotal 5,145.00

Insurance and Bonds 2.50% 128.63

Gross Receipts Tax 0.00% 0.00

TOTAL 5,273.63

Additional Days Requested 3 week lead time

APPROVED:

DATE:

The existing breaker called out in the coordination study will have to be replaced. If not 

replaced the main power feed to Citizens Tower could be tripped. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5



 

Proposed Change Order 1

TITLE: Panel DHE breaker replacement DATE: 5/23/2022

PROJECT: COL Parking Garage JOB: 1517

TO: Garrett Presnell CONTRACT NO:

Teinert Construction

Panel DHE breaker replacement

Project Manager 1.00 65.69$          65.69$                      

Superintendent 1.00 30.00$          30.00$                      

Superintendent OT 0.00 45.00$          -$                          

Foreman/Journeyman 4.00 30.00$          120.00$                    

Foreman/Journeyman OT 0.00 45.00$          -$                          

Labor Burden 215.69$          50% 107.85$                    

Total Labor 323.54$                    

Materials 4,150.00$                

CSI NC -$                          

Subtotal 4,473.54$                

OH/Profit 15.00% 671.03$                    

Bond 0.00% -$                          

Total 5,144.57$                

Sell $5,145.00

 Ryan Brown Garrett Presnell

Date: Date:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CBB9EAC-B1C9-4911-B97A-DBA057C6D5C5













Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

 Encumbered/Expended
Design 602,997                   
Bidding/Miscellaneous 132                          
Construction 6,766,986                
Acquisition 145                          
Installation 12,718                     

 Agenda Item July 12, 2022
Teinert Contract #15261 Amendment 1 187,644                   

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 7,570,622                

  Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Owner Contingency 390,672                   
  Remaining Appropriation 390,672                   

Total Appropriation 7,961,294$              

92672
Municipal Parking Garage

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
July 12, 2022



 AI# 10817 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001638, with CDW Government, LLC, for professional services related to the
planned upgrade of the Microsoft active directory migration and domain consolidation project for Public
Safety.

Item Summary
The purchase from CDW Government, LLC at a cost of $64,130 is for the Microsoft active directory
migration and domain consolidation project for Public Safety.  The proposed agreement is for a one-year
period.

The purchase is made available through the OMNIA Partners Region 4 Education Services Center
"ESC" Contract #R210401.  Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local
governments to acquire hardware, software and other Information Technology products through the
OMNIA Partners program.  Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from the
OMNIA Partners contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
The purchase price of $64,130 is being made through the Information Technology Professional Services
Account, and is included in the Adopted FY 2021-22 Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Resolution CDW PO 33001638 
CDW PO 33001638 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 6/22/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33001638 OP000
Branch/Plant         3410

CDW GOVERNMENT INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
75 REMITTANCE DRIVE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTSUITE 1515
CHICAGO IL 60675-1515 LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight6/22/2022
Taken ByRequested 6/22/2022  YBUSBY

PUR 16689/Quote#062022/OMNIA ESC R210401Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 59018

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date

1.000 37,065.0000 EA 37,065.00 7/22/2022AD Migration & Domain

Consolidation SOW
AD Migration & Domain 1.000 37,065.0000 EA 37,065.00 7/22/2022

Consolidation Project Closure

Discount 1.000 (10,000.0000) EA (10,000.00) 7/22/2022

Seller Funding

Total Order

Terms NET 30 64,130.00

If you have any questions contact Jay Zhine:jzhine@mylubbock.us Phone 806-775-2366

CITY OF LUBBOCK
___________________________________________ 
Tray Payne, Mayor

ATTEST:
_______________________________________ 
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $64,130.00 awarded to CDW Government, Inc. of Chicago, IL, on ______________, 
2022. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated June 20, 2022, from CDW 
Government, Inc. of Chicago, IL and OMNIA ESC R210401.
Resolution #____________________ 

INSURANCE REQUIRED: 

Commercial General Liability, per occurrence- $1,000,000 
$2,000,000 Aggregate. CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is 
perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a contractual 
relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage 
for contractual activities and for completed operations.

Cyber Liability Requirements: $2,000,000 of coverage is needed 
for Cyber Liability.
Technology Errors and Omissions Requirements: $5,000,000 
per claim.

City of Lubbock is named as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the 

City of Lubbock on liability coverages. To include products of completed operations endorsements. Waiver of subrogation provided on 

the workers' compensation.     



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


Proprietary and Confidential Page 1 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
Project Name: DVS - City of Lubbock - AD Consolidation Seller Representative: 

Rob Cooper 

+1 (469) 587-0447 

robecoo@cdw.com 

Customer Name: CITY OF LUBBOCK 

CDW Affiliate: CDW Government LLC 

Date: June 20, 2022 

Solution Architect: 

Evan Doty 

 

Drafted By  
 

 

 

This statement of work (“Statement of Work” or “SOW”) is made and entered into on the last date that this SOW is fully 

executed as set forth below (“SOW Effective Date”) by and between the undersigned, CDW Government LLC (“Provider,” 

and “Seller,”) and CITY OF LUBBOCK (“Customer,” and “Client,”).  

This SOW is subject to the terms and conditions of the OMNIA Partners Region 4 Education Services Center “ESC” 

Contract #R210401 held by CDW Government LLC with an effective date of June 1, 2021  (the “Agreement”). If there is a 

conflict between this SOW and the Agreement, then the Agreement will control, except as expressly amended in this SOW 

by specific reference to the Agreement. 

PROJECT SCOPE 

OVERVIEW 

The Customer has requested assistance in completing a domain consolidation, bringing their public safety – including Fire 

and Police units – into the principal domain used. This will involve working with, and scheduling with, active police and fire 

units, as well as identifying the potential for a coexistence model for the migration versus a ‘big bang’ model. This scope will 

also include time and effort for analyzing those applications in use by the organization, planning for the remote users in the 

organization, and incorporating all the potential components involved in a complex migration. Some important considerations 

for this scope include the following: A total of six (6) key applications are identified as essential to the migration process, and 

so only those six applications will be reviewed. 

A key item to identify is that the Public Safety domain is linked to the primary domain of the city, and email, as well as other 

Office 365 applications are presented to users in the public safety domain via those linked accounts. As that is the case, no 

specific migration of mail or other Office 365 resources are understood to be needed at this time. 

In the interest of efficiency, the Customer will be responsible for decommissioning the public safety domain once resources 

are moved out of it, and it stands empty. Additionally, customer will be responsible for the full resource migration, once 

migration testing and the 10 object pilot migration has completed. 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 2 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

PRE-PLANNING 

APPROACH 

In order to ensure a successful project, Seller will follow its proven methodology that focuses on envisioning, planning, 

design, and deploy phases. 

During these phases, Seller will work with Customer in a team-centric approach to ensure that knowledge transfer and best 

practices are provided to the Customer team. It is assumed that Customer will provide a ‘point’ person who has knowledge of 

Customer systems and setup to provide input to the planning and design efforts. 

The Workshops described in this document will facilitate direct knowledge transfer between Seller and the Customer staff, 

preparing Customer to more effectively participate in the implementation of Microsoft Active Directory Domain Services 

(“AD DS”). Techniques include a combination of formal presentation and less structured discussions that allow Customer 

staff to acquire information about the technologies specific to the Customer deployment requirements. The design workshops 

will discuss the technology overview, best practices and design elements specific to the Customer environment. 

PRE-PLANNING – DOCUMENTATION REQUEST 

Seller needs to review the Customer documentation of its current environment prior to the workshop activity. 

Upon the receipt of a signed SOW, Seller will work with Customer to obtain this documentation that will prepare Seller for 

the Design Workshops. This documentation will be reviewed prior to the commencement of the Kick-Off Meeting. If the 

required documentation is not available, Seller has a Site Assessment worksheet that can be provided to help gather the 

documentation. 

The Current State Document Request List includes: Domain Environment, Directory Services environment, Messaging 

environment, Network Environment, User Population, Service Levels and Administration. 

PROJECT KICK-OFF MEETING 

Seller will begin with a Project Kick-off Meeting with the core Customer Project team. The initial meeting may require time 

with the Customer business stakeholders, program sponsors, leads and IT managers. These interviews will help drive out the 

required business objectives, drivers, overall design objectives and finalize the scope. This meeting should occur at least one 

week prior to the onsite design and planning activities in order to give the teams the opportunity to prepare. 

Topics for this meeting include: 

• Knowledge transfer and review of company and project vision 

• Outline of primary goals, objectives, and project requirements 

• Knowledge transfer of Company Physical Profile and Organization structure including special requirements for a 

location of business unit 

• Document Request Current State 

• Establishment of Project Management protocol for the engagement 

• Establishment of Roles and Project Schedule 

PLANNING SESSION 

Planning is important and key to the success of a project or group of projects. The first day of onsite design and planning will 

include a session to clarify and review the gathered current state information. The requirements for the new environment will 

also be outlined during this session. 

• Current State. Review and clarification of questions on the Current State environment. 

• Requirements Definition. Determine, review and prioritize requirements for users, directories, security, coexistence, 

migration process, and monitoring and maintenance activities. 

  



Proprietary and Confidential Page 3 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

AD DS HEALTH CHECK AND ANALYSIS 

The health check and analysis consists of a number of activities, all of which contribute to a systematic and rigorous 

evaluation of your AD DS environment. 

ENVIRONMENT EXAMINATION 

The Seller’s consultant will first become acquainted with the existing AD DS architecture and any auxiliary environments or 

applications that rely on or affect AD DS. The Environment Examination includes a Design Check and a Health Check. Part 

of this design check will be reviewing and verifying the nature of the linked connectivity between the two environments, 

wherein user accounts in the Public Safety domain access resources in the main City domain via linked connections. 

DESIGN CHECK 

The Seller consultant will analyze the current AD design and looks for gaps or deficiencies in the following areas: 

• Forest and Domain Architecture 

• Domain Controllers 

• DNS and Namespace design 

• NetBIOS Name Resolution 

• Flexible Single Master Operation (FSMO) Placement 

• Replication topology and Site Design 

• Group Policy Objects (GPO) 

• AD DS Monitoring & Backup Processes 

• AD DS Disaster Recovery 

• AD DS Antivirus; Patch Management Processes 

• Audit Policies 

• Security Policies 

• Account Lockout Policies 

HEALTH CHECK 

The health check evaluates whether the following areas are working properly and identifies any gaps indicating that they are 

not. The health check will: 

• Verify the health of each Domain Controller 

• Verify FSMO ownership propagates properly throughout the Forest 

• Verify Site & Subnet topology 

• Verify replication convergence 

• Verify FRS or DFS-R is replicating properly 

• Identify users with Enterprise Admin, Schema Admin and Domain Admin rights 

These activities provide the basis for, and typically contribute to, the Gap Identification and Best Practices Analysis 

component. 

REPORT AND PRESENTATION 

Seller will formally present the Health Check findings during a review session with system administrators and leads. The 

Findings and Recommendations document and presentation also provide a high-level road map of next steps and an outline of 

potential issues. 

PLANNING AND DESIGN 

The Design Workshops described in this document will facilitate direct knowledge transfer between Seller and the Customer 

staff, preparing Customer to more effectively participate in AD DS’ migration. Techniques include a combination of formal 

presentation and less structured discussions that allow Customer staff to acquire information about the technologies specific 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 4 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

to the Customer deployment requirements. The design workshops will discuss the technology overview, best practices and 

design elements specific to the Customer environment. 

EXISTING AD DS DESIGN REVIEW AND VALIDATION 

Since Customer has an existing target environment to be used for the migration, Seller will review this environment. This 

review will focus on the suitability of the target environment to support the migration and on comparing the environment to 

best practices to identify any gaps or necessary remediation steps. 

The Active Directory Domain Services (AD DS) Design Review will cover the following topics with respect to the existing 

target AD DS environment: 

• Architecture Design 

○ Current State and Requirements Review 

○ Forest and Domain Architecture 

○ Name Resolution and Network Services 

○ Sites and Services Architecture 

○ Operations Master Roles and Domain Controllers 

○ Backup and Restore 

• Administrative Design 

○ Account Model 

○ Group Model 

○ Delegation of Administration 

○ Group Policy Model Design 

  

Understanding that we have just completed a health check, the AD DS design review and validation will focus specifically on 

the requirements of integration for users coming from the public safety AD DS environment. This will include items such as 

the linked accounts used for mail and O365 access, among other things. 

APPLICATION ASSESSMENT WORKSHOP 

In this workshop, the Seller will work directly with the Customer seeking to understand and capture the components and 

implementations of the components for up to six (6) applications identified as ‘tightly coupled’ to the source domain, to be 

moved to the destination domain.  The components, along with their implementation, drives out options available to 

implement using various migration scenarios. 

• Validate/Determine current state of the Application component architecture 

• Validate/Determine Security and Identity pattern requirement for application 

• Identify component dependencies for the application. 

• Create a conceptual diagram for review with the decision makers 

▪ Bounded to counts and connectivity – not application reviews 

▪ M365 Suite (Exchange, SharePoint, teams, AAD, etc.) 

o External connectivity 

▪ VPN 

▪ SAAS 

▪ Non-domain joined managed devices 

AD DS MIGRATION PLANNING WORKSHOP 

The AD DS Coexistence and Migration Planning Workshop is a critical component in determining a comprehensive 

migration plan that minimizes user disruption and process changes during the production migration phase. During this phase, 

Seller will work with Customer to ensure that knowledge transfer and best practices are provided to the Customer team. 

The AD DS Coexistence and Migration Planning Workshop will cover the following topics: 

• Migration Approaches 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 5 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

• Network Services Integration 

• Domain Upgrade Strategy 

• Domain Migration Strategy 

• Data Migration Strategy 

• Applications and Services Migration Strategy 

• Tools Selection 

• Deployment Planning 

○ Pre-Requisites 

○ Communication Plan 

○ Environment Build 

○ Coexistence 

○ Testing 

○ User Migration Process 

○ Workstation Migrations Process 

○ Project Milestones and Timeline 

  

DFS SHARE DISCOVERY AND DESIGN WORKSHOP 

During this Workshop, Seller will work with Customer’s technical staff that is responsible for the Distributed File System 

and has knowledge of the file shares and usage.  This session will finalize the file share and user group definitions to provide 

a scope of the DFS Namespace and DFS Replication requirements. 

The following topics will be included in the session: 

• Discovery of file shares, group or individual ownership, user access and share sizes 

• Discovery of user groups and types of file share mappings to be provided in the namespace 

• Discovery of data center and remote site storage in use and availability for future use for file shares 

• Logical namespace design and mappings 

o Review of Access-based Enumeration effects on namespace use 

• File share / namespace storage mapping and replication definitions for: 

o Up to 100 file shares 

o Up to 3 sites or servers 

• Review file server and network bandwidth available/requirements 

• Plan for DFS role installation on required servers 

BUILD AND PILOT 

CONFIGURE DFS NAMESPACE AND REPLICATION 

During this phase, Seller with participation from Customer’s technical staff who is responsible for DFS will configure DFS-N 

and DFS-R. This phase will also require you to provide access and administrative privilege to DFS-N and DFS-R servers. 

Implementation tasks that require physical presence in remote locations within the United States are not estimated in this 

Statement of Work. The Change Order process, defined below, will be utilized to add travel and services to remote sites if 

desired. 

Tasks to be included in this phase include: 

• Coordinating, with Customer, of new servers and other systems required to implement the DFS solution. 

• Configuring DFS-N role on domain controllers, as required 

• Validating storage space availability and usage for DFS share replications 

• Configuring DFS-N and DFS-R definitions 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 6 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

o Up to 100 file shares will be configured 

o Single failover / failback definitions for shares 

o Up to 3 sites or servers will be configured 

• Testing and validating DFS-N and DFS-R operations 

  

ENVIRONMENT BUILD 

During this phase, any required changes to the Target environment to enable the migration as determined during the AD DS 

Design Review are implemented. Note: The changes do not include remediating the Source or Target domains. If Customer 

requests remediation assistance, a project change order will be required for Seller to perform the additional work. 

Any supporting infrastructure required for the migration including configured the migration tool, as determined in the AD DS 

Coexistence and Migration Planning Workshop is created and configured. Finally, any configuration changes required for the 

Source and Target environments to coexist, such as establishing forest trusts, are implemented. 

MIGRATION 

MIGRATION TESTING 

Migration testing is a critical component in validating that the migration plan minimizes user disruption and process changes 

during the production migration phase. Testing is vital to confirm that individual aspects of the migration process are 

completed correctly and function as expected during the migration itself and once in the target environment. During the AD 

DS Coexistence and Migration workshop, specific functionality and use cases are typically identified that require specific 

testing. Together with the Customer, Seller with will build test cases and scripts for each identified item, and then validate 

them during this phase. 

The results of this phase will determine if changes are needed to either the source or target environments, or if the migration 

process itself needs to be altered. The AD DS Coexistence and Migration Plan will be updated as necessary. 

PILOT PRODUCTION MIGRATION 

This phase begins with a pilot migration.  The pilot migration is limited in scope to minimize potential impact, but larger than 

any test migrations in order to validate the migration process on a larger scale, similar to what is planned for production 

migrations. 

This pilot migration will be used to train the City of Lubbock team on the process and procedure needed to move Active 

Directory Objects between domains, including users, workstations, servers, and files. 

FILE AND PRINT SERVICES 

Seller will work with Customer to plan the migration of shares, files and access control lists on three (3) existing Windows 

Server File Services’ servers to three (3) new Windows Server 2019 or newer File Services servers. Seller will also plan the 

migration of five (5) existing Windows Server Print Services’ server to five (5) new Windows Server 2019 or newer Print 

Services server. 

PROJECT CLOSURE AND NEXT STEPS 

At the project’s conclusion, a closure meeting will be held with Customer and Seller (Delivery and pre-Sales resources) to 

verify that all business and technical requirements have been satisfied.  If, during the engagement, next steps or 

recommendations have been discovered by Seller those options will be presented to Customer for future action. 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

1. This project is limited to two (2) AD DS forest(s) comprised of two (2) domain(s). 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 7 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

2. There will be a reassessment of the level of effort of the execution phase, including build and migration, upon 

completion of the initial discovery and design of this project. 

3. All domain controllers enumerated will reside in the United States. 

4. There are not any other roles or applications on the current domain controllers that prevent the domain services role 

on them from being removed/decommissioned. 

5. Customer acknowledges that duplicate NetBIOS names and IP addresses cannot be on the network at the same time, 

reusing the existing DC’s NetBIOS names and IP addresses will result in an outage for those machines while each of 

their new replacement DCs are being configured.  Customer acknowledges and accepts that all other roles or 

applications installed on the existing DCs will go offline when the servers are powered off.     

6. User object migration will not exceed 10. 

7. Workstation object migration will not exceed 10. 

8. File server migration will not exceed 3. 

9. Print server migration will not exceed 5. 

10. Member server migration will not exceed 15. 

11. Application investigation will occur for six (6) applications, but Customer is expected to have full support from 

application vendors in order to accomplish migration between domains, including establishment of coexistence. 

12. The number of workstations migrated to the Target environment per day is estimated at 100 which is largely 

dependent on how many Level 1 support calls Customer’s helpdesk can manage the following day. A change order 

will be needed if total number of hours allocated for migrating workstations does not meet the minimum estimate. 

13. Workstation remediation is the responsibility of Customer; Seller will provide Level 2 support. 

14. Quest Migration Manager for Active Directory (“MMAD”) will be used for the migration.  The estimated Services 

fees in this Statement of Work assumes MMAD will be utilized but if another tool was decided on during Planning 

and Design a Change Order can be created. 

15. All tools the Seller installs or runs will be done so on Customer’s hardware. Seller retains all rights to the Seller-

developed tools.  

16. The current AD DS and internal DNS are healthy and properly functioning to support the scope of this project. 

17. The operating system version for the new domain controllers and any other servers will be Windows Server 2019 or 

newer. 

18. You and Seller will follow Seller’s Project Management Methodology for this project. 

19. Some services may be performed at a location other than your location (or another location designated by you). 

When services are performed at your location (or another location designated by you), you will provide adequate, 

co-located workspace for the engagement personnel (both Seller personnel and Customer personnel) with 

appropriate system access. Seller recommends keeping these personnel separate from support teams and those 

performing daily operations. When services are performed at your location (or another location designated by you), 

the site will be secure. Seller is not responsible for lost or stolen equipment. 

20. You will provide network connectivity, Internet access and voice access for local and long-distance calls. 

21. All Change Orders will be provided in a timely fashion either by U.S. Mail, e-mail, personal transfer or facsimile 

transmission to Seller’s contact person. 

22. If specified in the “Description/Scope of Services” section above, initial support services related to the services that 

are the subject of this SOW will be available as specified in that section. Seller will invoice you for the time Seller 

performs this support, calculated using the rates specified in the “Professional Services Fees” section below (in the 

increments specified therein). 

23. Customer will provide subject matter experts in any applications that may be necessary to connect to AD DS. These 

experts will provide the project team with authentication and migration plans. Seller will NOT design any 

application migration procedures. 

24. Cost of Delay: The cost of all delays in Customer approval, issue resolution, and information provision to our team 

will be paid by Customer.  



Proprietary and Confidential Page 8 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

25. External Dependencies: There may be external projects/dependencies that may have significant impact on the 

timeline, schedule, and deliverables. It is our assumption that every reasonable attempt will be made to mitigate such 

situations. 

26. Customer acknowledges that Seller may earn a Microsoft incentive payment if Customer purchases Microsoft 

products from Seller. Furthermore, Customer hereby consents to Seller receiving any such payment from Microsoft 

and has no objections in relation thereto. 

  

CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Communicate all material project matters to Seller’s contact person. 

2. Application compatibility and application support. 

3. Provide at least one qualified technical person with system administration responsibilities for the duration of the 

project. 

4. Provide qualified personnel at your location (or any other location designated by you where services are to be 

provided) to support your existing equipment for the duration of the project. 

5. Provide other full-time, qualified, knowledgeable personnel who will perform your obligations under this SOW; 

make timely decisions necessary to move performance of the services forward; participate in this project to the 

extent reasonably requested by Seller; and reasonably assist Seller with its performance of the services. 

6. Provide Seller’s personnel with appropriate levels of access and privilege to systems and information necessary for 

Seller’s performance of the services. 

7. Build new server hardware and/or create guest virtual machines, install baseline operating system, establish network 

connectivity, and update OS with the latest patches, according to Microsoft best practices.  

8. Purchase the appropriate number of Quest's Migration Manager for Active Directory licenses prior to the start of this 

project.  Seller can assist with sourcing these materials upon request; however, Customer is ultimately responsible 

for the migration software for this project. 

  

OUT OF SCOPE 

Specific tasks outside this SOW include, but are not limited to: 

1. Seller is NOT investigating, assessing, documenting, evaluating risk, or mitigating any of the following: 

a. Application compatibility with Schema upgrade. 

b. Applications compatibly with domain services functional level changes. 

c. Applications installed on DCs and their functionality after removing Active Directory Domain Services. 

2. Redesign of the structure of Active Directory Domain Services OUs, Groups, or Group Policies. 

3. Hardware build and configuration of servers for the new servers (“rack and stack”). 

4. Provisioning of virtual servers to be used in this project. 

5. Remediation of application dependencies on Active Directory Domain Services. 

6. PKI health review, configuration or migration. 

7. Reorganizing or repermissioning file server volumes and directories. 

8. Installing and configuring antivirus, monitoring and/or backup agents on new Windows Servers. Customer is 

responsible for the solutions and will ensure that the servers are protected after the operating system is installed. 

9. Seller will not be conducting formal training; however, knowledge transfer is integral to our approach throughout 

execution of our methodology. 

10. User, administrative operations or other documentation not specifically previously mentioned. 

11. Remediation of application dependencies on AD DS. 

12. Reorganizing or repermissioning file server volumes and directories. 

13. Troubleshooting and/or remediation of the current AD DS environment. 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 9 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

14. Redesign of the structure of AD DS. No redesign of the AD DS structure will be performed as part of this project. 

15. Acquisition of hardware and software required for this engagement, including servers and software. Seller can assist 

with sourcing these materials upon request; however, Customer is ultimately responsible for the hardware and 

software for this project. 

16. Staging of the physical servers to be used in this engagement. This includes racking as well as implementing the 

base operating system and network configuration. 

17. Configuration of centralized storage. SAN and/or other centralized storage configuration is the responsibility of 

Customer 

18. Installing and configuring antivirus on the Microsoft Servers or Workstations. Customer is responsible for the 

antivirus solution and will ensure that the servers are protected after the operating system is installed. 

19. Backup/disaster recovery. Seller will not develop a backup/disaster recovery plan for the new environment as a part 

of this engagement. 

20. Seller will not be conducting formal training; however, knowledge transfer is integral to our approach throughout 

execution of our methodology. 

21. Writing end user and administrator process documentation. That documentation can be added to the project’s scope 

but will required a change request for the additional hours required. 

  

Services not specified in this SOW are considered out of scope and will be addressed with a separate SOW or Change Order. 

ITEM(S) PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER 
Table 1 – Item(s) Provided to Customer 

Item Description Format 

AD DS Review/Validation Document that has captured all inventory that has been 

gathered during the Analysis and Planning phase and 

the AD DS Architectural Design and Administration 

Review/Validation workshops. 

PDF 

AD DS Migration 

Planning Design 

Final design document that includes: 

• Migration planning design 

• Migration strategy and approach 

• Dependencies and coexistence design 

PDF 

Next 

Steps/Recommendation 

follow-up Services 

Proposal 

Services Proposal written by pre-Sales (non-billable) for 

the recommended next steps. 

PDF 

  

  

GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

• Customer is responsible for providing all access that is reasonably necessary to assist and accommodate Seller’s 

performance of the Services. 

• Customer will provide in advance and in writing, and Seller will follow, all applicable Customer’s facility’s safety 

and security rules and procedures. 

• Customer is responsible for security at all Customer-Designated Locations; Seller is not responsible for lost or stolen 

equipment, other than solely as a result of Seller’s gross negligence and willful misconduct. 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 10 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

• This SOW can be terminated by either party without cause upon at least fourteen (14) days’ advance written notice. 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Seller will assign a project management resource to perform the following activities during the project: 

  

Kickoff Meeting. Review SOW including project objectives and schedule, logistics, identify and confirm project participants 

and discuss project prerequisites. 

Project Schedule or Plan. A project schedule that details the schedule and resources assigned to the project.  The schedule 

should align with the estimated project duration as established in the Project Scheduling section. 

Status Meetings and Reports. Status meetings will be conducted on a regular cadence schedule based on agreement with 

stakeholders, the estimated project duration and budget available. During these meetings, the Seller and Customer will 

discuss action items, tasks completed, tasks outstanding, risks, issues, key decisions and conduct a budget review. 

Change Management. When a change to a project occurs, the Seller’s project change control process will be utilized. 

Project Closure. Once verbal scope completion is confirmed, a written Project Closure Acceptance will be provided for 

Customer to formally acknowledge.  If desired, the project team will meet to recap, answering any questions address project 

transition activities and next steps.   

  
Project Management 
A Project Manager is assigned and provides the following: 

• Coordinates and facilitates kickoff, status (at agreed upon intervals) and close out calls 

• Documents and distributes meeting notes/action items for all calls 

• Creates and distributes escalation and contact lists 

• Conducts regular status meetings to proactively identify any issues that may arise in order to mitigate risk 

• Facilitates any necessary Change Orders and administrative tasks as necessary 

• Monitors project scope and expectations 

• Identifies and manages project risks 

• Monitors the status and progress of the project and the quality of items provided 

• Communicates at regular intervals, as agreed upon 

• Acts as the main Point Of Contact to Customer, if requested 

•         Ensures project timelines, dependencies, budgets and closure are met within the project lifecycle 

  

CONTACT PERSONS 

Each Party will appoint a person to act as that Party’s point of contact (“Contact Person”) as the time for performance nears 

and will communicate that person’s name and information to the other Party’s Contact Person. 

Customer Contact Person is authorized to approve materials and Services provided by Seller, and Seller may rely on the 

decisions and approvals made by the Customer Contact Person (except that Seller understands that Customer may require a 

different person to sign any Change Orders amending this SOW). The Customer Contact Person will manage all 

communications with Seller, and when Services are performed at a Customer-Designated Location, the Customer Contact 

Person will be present or available. The Parties’ Contact Persons shall be authorized to approve changes in personnel and 

associated rates for Services under this SOW. 

CHANGE MANAGEMENT 

This SOW may be modified or amended only in a writing signed by both Customer and Seller, generally in the form provided 

by Seller (“Change Order”). Services not specified in this SOW are considered out of scope and will be addressed with a 

separate SOW or Change Order. 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 11 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in a fully executed Change Order and those set forth in 

this SOW or a prior fully executed Change Order, the terms and conditions of the most recent fully executed Change Order 

shall prevail. 

PROJECT SCHEDULING 

Customer and Seller, who will jointly manage this project, will together develop timelines for an anticipated schedule 

(“Anticipated Schedule”) based on Seller’s project management methodology. Any dates, deadlines, timelines or schedules 

contained in the Anticipated Schedule, in this SOW or otherwise, are estimates only, and the Parties will not rely on them for 

purposes other than initial planning. 

The following scheduling scenarios that trigger delays and durations to extend beyond what's been planned may require a 

Change Order: 

• Site preparation, such as power, cabling, physical access, system access, hardware/software issues, etc. must be 

completed in a timely manner. 

• Project tasks delegated to Customer PMs/Engineers/Techs/Management/Resources must be completed in a timely 

manner.  For example, in the event a project 's prioritization is demoted, and Customer resources are reallocated 

causing the project's schedule to extend on account of experiencing interruptions to its momentum 

requiring complete stop(s) and start(s). 

• External projects/dependencies that may have significant impact on the timeline, schedule and deliverables.  It is 

Seller's assumption that every reasonable attempt will be made to mitigate such situations. 

TOTAL FEES 

The total fees due and payable under this SOW (“Total Fees”) include both fees for Seller’s performance of work (“Services 

Fees”) and any other related costs and fees specified in the Expenses section (“Expenses”). 

Seller will invoice for Total Fees. Customer will pay invoices containing amounts authorized by this SOW in accordance 

with the terms of the Agreement. Unless otherwise specified, taxes will be invoiced but are not included in any numbers or 

calculations provided herein. Any objections to an invoice must be communicated to the Seller Contact Person within fifteen 

(15) days after receipt of the invoice. 

SERVICES FEES 

Services Fees hereunder are FIXED FEES, meaning that the amount invoiced for the Services will be $74,130.00. 

The invoiced amount of Services Fees will equal the amount of fees applicable to each completed project milestone (see 

Table below). 

Table – Services Fees 

Milestone Percentage Fee 

Signed SOW 50% $37,065.00 

Project Closure 50% $37,065.00 

Subtotal 100% $74,130.00 

Less Seller funding ($10,000.00) 

Totals $64,130.00 



Proprietary and Confidential Page 12 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

EXPENSES 

All services under this SOW will be performed remotely; therefore, neither travel time nor direct expenses will be billed for 

this project. 

TRAVEL NOTICE 

The parties agree that there will be no travel required for this project. 

CUSTOMER-DESIGNATED LOCATIONS 

Seller will provide Services benefiting the locations specified on the attached Exhibit (“Customer-Designated Locations”).  

 

  



Proprietary and Confidential Page 13 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

SIGNATURES 

In acknowledgement that the parties below have read and understood this Statement of Work and agree to be bound by it, 

each party has caused this Statement of Work to be signed and transferred by its respective authorized representative.  

This SOW and any Change Order may be signed in separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all 

of which together will be deemed to be one original. Electronic signatures on this SOW or on any Change Order (or copies of 

signatures sent via electronic means) are the equivalent of handwritten signatures. 

CDW Government LLC   CITY OF LUBBOCK  

 

By: 
{{Sig_es_:signer1:signature}} 

Name: Susan Lusk 

Title: Mgr Contract Negotiations 

Date: 

{{Dte_es_:signer1:date}} 

Mailing Address: 

200 N. Milwaukee Ave. 

Vernon Hills, IL  60061 
  

 

 

By: 
{{Sig_es_:signer1:signature}} 

Name: {{Sig_es_:signer1:full_name}} 

Title: 

{{Ttl1_es_:signer1:title}} 

Date: 

{{Dte_es_:signer1:date}} 

Mailing Address: 

PO BOX 2000, ACCTS PAYABLE 

LUBBOCK, TX 79457-0001 
  

 
 

 

  



Proprietary and Confidential Page 14 18921 | CDW Government LLC 

SOW 63957      

EXHIBIT A 

CUSTOMER-DESIGNATED LOCATIONS 

Seller will provide Services benefiting the following locations (“Customer-Designated Locations”). 

Location(s) Address 

IT Main 1314 Ave K, Lubbock, TX 79457 

 

 



 AI# 10837 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001641, with Dell Financial Services, LLC, for a two-year VMware Enterprise
License Agreement for support for cloud-based and virtual hardware and storage.

Item Summary
The purchase from Dell Financial Services LLC is for a two (2) Year VMware Enterprise License
Agreement at a cost of $600,000 for the City of Lubbock including a payment plan solution. The
payments will be billed in two invoices in the amount of $300,000 each and will be due on 10/15/2022
and 10/15/2023.

The purchase is made available through the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Contract DIR-TSO-3763. Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments
to acquire hardware, software and other Information Technology products through the DIR program.
Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from DIR contracts meet competitive
bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
The purchase price of $600,000 is being made through the Information Technology Software
Maintenance Account and is pending approval in the Proposed FY 2022-23 and 2023-24 Operating
Budgets.  The payments will be billed in two invoices in the amount of $300,000 each and will be due on
10/15/2022 and 10/15/2023.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 

















 AI# 10804 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0095, for Zone Case
696-A, a request of Stantec Consulting Services for Devon Self-Storage, for a Specific Use for a
self-storage facility on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) at 2010 Avenue R, located south of
20th Street and west of Avenue R, Sherwood Addition, Lot 1.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 696-A 
Staff Report 696-A 
Documentation 696-A 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 696-A 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant Stantec Consulting Services 

Property Owner  Devon Self-Storage 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• February 7, 1921, Ordinance No. 197: This property was annexed into city limits.
• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance No. 661: This property was zoned Single & Two-Family District

(B).
• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: This zoning on this property was converted from District (B) to Two-

Family District (R-2).
• May 29, 1958, Zone Case 696, Ordinance No. 2486: This property was rezoned from R-2 to Commercial

District (C-4).
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 696-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a

Specific Use for a Storage Facility on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 7-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 25
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 1 (outside the notification boundary) 

Site Conditions and History 
This property was platted as Sherwood Addition, Lot 1 in 1959 and developed with a commercial building in 1960. 
The building is now vacant, but was formerly used by AT&T. 

Adjacent Property Development 
This property is surrounded by single-family residences and parking lots zoned R-2 to the east and south, a single-
family residence and commercial print shop zoned C-4 to the north, and a self-storage facility zoned C-4, a 
single-family residence zoned Multi-Family District (R-3), and an apartment complex zoned High-Density 
Apartment District (A-2) to the west.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 2010 Avenue R, south of 20th Street and west of Avenue R. The applicant is 
requesting a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility on property zoned C-4. 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

Commercial District (C-4) 

Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-4 zoning is “to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which serve 
a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or federal 
highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent residential 
areas should be carefully considered.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use District is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 20th Street and west of Avenue R, both of which are designated Local Streets by 
the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets are designed to provide access to smaller, destination-oriented 
areas such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, or local business districts. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed Specific Use and will not require additional public improvements to 
support the intensity of the proposed use. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Photos
F. Application and Supporting Documentation
G. Notification Response 

Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 
Planner  Director of Planning 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2021 806-775-2109
ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 696-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Commercial District (C-4) 

    Specific Use District 

 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 20th Street, Avenue S, 21st 

Street and Avenue R 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

20th Street 
Local Street  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue S 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

21st Street 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue R 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.1 District 1 

Case 696-A: Stantec Consulting Services for Devon Self-Storage 

 

Request for a Specific Use for a self-storage facility on property zoned Commercial 

District (C-4) at: 

 2010 Avenue R, located south of 20th Street and west of Avenue R, Sherwood 

Addition, Lot 1. 

  

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER stated there were twenty-five (25) notifications sent out. 

There has been zero returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and 

discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT PAUL HAMES 6080 Tennyson Parkway, Suite 200 Plano, Texas with Stantec Consulting 

Service, advised he is the engineer on the project and is available to answer any questions. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001334
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001462


Zone Case 696-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 3 
 

APPLICANT’S ARCHITECT MIKE OLSEN 2010 Avenue R, advised they intend to do a Class A 

conversion on the property for a climate controlled self-storage facility with no storage on the parking lot. 

He shared photos of other projects they have been involved in and stated he understands the requirement 

for a six-foot screening fence on the property line. He spoke with neighbors regarding the fence and they 

felt a wall should not be required. One neighbor who has lived there for six years, stated the other storage 

facility nearby has been broken into and causes litter in the area. A wall would give homeless people a 

place to hide behind. He told the neighbors there would be lighting and security on and around the facility. 

The property has been vacant for three years. 

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER stated a screening wall is required adjacent to residential 

property. The property is unique because it has streets on all four sides. The applicant has the option to 

request a variance to waive the requirement through the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

 

BOARD MEMBER JAMES BELL asked if they have remodeled any multi-story buildings. Mr. Olsen 

answered they have done a three-story building in Michigan. 

 

BOARD MEMBER RENEE CAGE asked about lighting. Mr. Olsen stated they intend to have lighting 

in the parking lot. 

 

BOARD MEMBER SUSAN TOMLINSON asked if they are open to developing businesses other than 

self-storage. Mr. Olsen stated they only do self-storage. 

 

OPPOSITION DR. TRAVIS NEEL 2220 33rd Street, Assistant Professor of Art at Texas Tech 

University, read a prepared letter. He is representing The Heart of Lubbock Neighborhood Association. 

There is already a self-storage facility in the neighborhood and the Association is trying to make the area 

more walkable. They are concerned about homeless people gathering, substandard housing, drug 

trade/use, and sex workers coming into the area. He pointed out there is a flooding issue in the area already, 

at the corner of 21st Street and Avenue S. They are already concerned about that corner becoming a health 

hazard to the nearby residents. The Association does not think that is a good project for the neighborhood. 

 

OPPOSITION TOM ROHRIG 2430 29th Street stated he is the current Secretary of the Heart of 

Lubbock Neighborhood Association. They are in favor of retail businesses coming into the neighborhood. 

 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER stated there are several things that cannot be figured into the request. It is not 

going to cause more graffiti, flooding issues, and stormwater problems as those issues already exist. The 

self-storage building may help to clean up the area. 

 

BOARD MEMBER JAMES BELL stated anything is better than a vacant building and acknowledged 

there will still be issues. 

 

BOARD MEMBER SUSAN TOMLINSON stated she would love to see a grocery store come to that 

neighborhood but at this point, there has not been the interest to build on that property. 

 

BOARD MEMBER RENEE CAGE stated some landscaping may help combat some of the issues that 

exist in the area.  

 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 



Zone Case 696-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 3 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 696-A a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by SUSAN 

TOMLINSON to approve the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 









696-A

East View—Subject Property.

South View.

North View.

West View.







Proposed Conversion
With 6’ Wall 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX

Avenue R

20
th

St
re

et



Proposed Conversion
With 6’ Wall 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Proposed Conversion
With 6’ Wall 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX

Avenue S



Proposed Conversion
With 6’ Wall 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Proposed Conversion
With 6’ Wall 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Proposed Conversion
Landscaping & Trees (No Wall) 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX

Avenue R

20
th

St
re

et



Proposed Conversion
Landscaping & Trees (No Wall) 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Proposed Conversion
Landscaping & Trees (No Wall) 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX

Avenue S



Proposed Conversion
Landscaping & Trees (No Wall) 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Proposed Conversion
Landscaping & Trees (No Wall) 
2010 Ave R, Lubbock TX



Devon is an employee-owned, private real estate company founded in 1988 and is 
comprised with a seasoned senior management team that has worked together for an 
average of 20 years. Each member of the Devon senior management team has been 
instrumental in growing the company and executing a business plan which has resulted in 
approximately $2.5 billion in self-storage transactions. As a leader in the self-storage 
industry, Devon has maintained a dedicated self-storage operating platform since 1993 and 
has owned and/or managed in excess of 233 facilities in 24 states and three European 
countries. Devon is ranked as a top private self-storage operator in the nation, and 
continuously strives to achieve the highest returns for its investment partners leveraging its 
experience. Devon currently operates 89 self-storage properties in 23 states, with a 
market value in excess of $1.2 billion. 

Devon implements the best and latest self-storage technologies including online unit 
reservations and bill payment, managed lead tracking, and call center support, while 
benefiting from the utilization of various social media platforms. Devon’s sophisticated 
operational platform is one advantage that sets them apart from the traditional “mom and 
pop” operators that lack in technology efforts and established partnerships with major 
financial organizations and industry peers. Devon has extensive market knowledge and 
utilizes proprietary acquisition and detailed market analysis specific to the self-storage 
industry. Devon also has a history of hiring team members with strong qualifications in 
their field of expertise, from property management and maintenance technicians to 
regional directors. Most Devon properties are secured by video surveillance and 
electronic alarm systems with a 24-hour dispatch center. Rental agreements are issued 
on a month-to-month basis and each of Devon’s properties has at least one on-site 
manager. 

Over the years, Devon has created more than a dozen relationships with several prominent 
institutions to execute sophisticated self-storage construction projects, which include 
ground-up developments and conversions/redevelopments. Devon has decades of 
experience in acquiring properties and converting them for other use or function from its 
original format. Devon’s acquisition team meets weekly to evaluate and discuss conversion 
candidate properties, geographic markets, feasible site criteria, and the deal objectives of 
each project. 

Devon Highlights

89

23

$1.2 B

More than
233

10

93

1.8 B



11

Devon Self Storage - Operations

EXCEPTIONAL CUSTOMER SERVICE. BEST IN-
CLASS SECURITY.

Each of our 89 locations is outfitted with 24/7 security monitoring, a 
fully fenced perimeter, well-lit grounds, and electronic gated 
entrance. Our experienced management team is onsite during 

operation hours and happy to lend a hand, answer a question, or find 
the right storage solution to meet your needs – whether it’s a 

temporary fix or a long-term partnership.

Office Hours
Monday – Friday: 9:30am – 6:00pm

Saturday: 9:00am – 5:00pm
Sunday: Closed

Access Hours
Monday – Sunday: 6:00am – 10:00pm

https://www.devonselfstorage.com/locations


12

Photos of Property – Pre-Conversion



13

Photos of Property – Pre-Conversion



14

Conversions
4111 Plainfield Ave, Grand Rapids MI



15

Conversions
1400 Buchanan Ave SW, Grand Rapids, MI



16

Conversions
6471 Camp Bowie Blvd, Fort Worth, TX 76116



17

Conversions
4815 West Colonial Drive, Orlando FL



18

Conversions
1501 Admiral Wilson Blvd, Camden NJ





TRACT I LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

LOT ONE (1), SHERWOOD ADDITION, a Resubdivision of Block 4, McCrummen’s Second Addition to the 
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the Map, Plat, and/or Dedication Deed thereof 
recorded in Volume 731, Page 609 of the Deed Records of Lubbock, County, Texas. 









 AI# 10806 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0096, for Zone Case
2418-C, a request of 3D Land Development, LLC, for a zone change from High-Density Apartment
District (A-2) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), at 3504, 3506, 3507, and 3508 East Cornell
Drive and 402 North Ironwood Avenue, Cherry Point Addition, Lots 423-427.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
4-3-0. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinanace 2418-C 
Staff Report 2418-C 
Documentation 2418-C 









Page 1 of 3 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2418-C 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant  3D Land Development, LLC 

Property Owner   3D Land Development, LLC 

Council District  2 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958, Ordinance 2533: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T).
• September 10, 1959, Zone Case 0788, Ordinance No. 2898: This property was rezoned from T to Single-

Family District (R-1).
• October 13, 1983, Zone Case 2418, Ordinance No. 8495: This property was rezoned from R-1 to High-

Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use for a church.
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 2418-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of
4-3-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 17
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject properties were platted as Cherry Point Addition, Lots 413-427 in 1962 and have remained vacant 
since annexation.  

Adjacent Property Development 
The subject properties are surrounded by R-1 zoning. Property to the northwest and northeast is vacant and 
property to the southwest and southeast is developed with single-family homes. There are four other properties 
on this block zoned A-2 Specific Use for a church, one of which has been developed with a church. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are located at 3504, 3506, 3507 and 3508 East Cornell Drive and 402 North Ironwood 
Avenue, south of Northeast Loop 289, on the east and west sides of East Cornell Drive. The applicant requests a 
zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use for a church to Two-Family District (R-2).  

Current zoning:  High Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use for a church 

Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current A-2 zoning is, “… to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 
land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 



Page 2 of 2 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 
uses. When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned property, 
the proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent 
development. Architectural design, landscaping, screening and parking areas shall be properly provided to 
ensure maximum protection of lower-density uses.”  

The intent of the current Specific Use is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the 
intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance as stated in Section 
1 {29-2} [40.01.002].” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “… to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 
increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 
accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density 
and high-density or non-residential districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Northeast Loop 289, East Cornell Drive and Ironwood Avenue. 
Northeast Loop 289 is designated as a Freeway; East Cornell Drive and Ironwood Avenue are designated as Local 
Streets by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. The primary function of a freeway is to connect local areas to 
other regions, rather than serve local traffic needs. Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination-oriented 
areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses. Although the proposed 
zone change to R-2 is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location and would conform 
to the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in R-2 zoning district. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla 
Planner  
Planning Department
806-775-2107
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us

Kristen Sager 
Director of Planning
Planning Department
806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2418-C 

 

Allowable Uses:    Two Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Northeast Loop 289, Cornell 

Drive, and Ironwood Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Northeast Loop 289, 
Freeway, Completed  

R.O.W. 300 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 300 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Cornell Drive,  
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Ironwood Avenue, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 56 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3 District 2 

Case 2418-C: 3D Land Development, LLC 

  

Request for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use to 

Two-Family District (R-2), at: 

 

 3504, 3506, 3507, and 3508 East Cornell Drive and 402 North Ironwood 

Avenue, Cherry Point Addition, Lots 423-427. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were thirteen (13) notifications sent out. There has been 

zero returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

APPLICANT DENNIS CARRIZALES 2619 21st Street advised he is working with a developer who 

wants to construct duplexes on these lots. There would be a total of ten units, two on each lot.  

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001046


Zone Case 2418-C 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

BOARD MEMBER JAMES BELL asked if the property is currently zoned A-2 with a Specific Use for 

a church and if the church was no longer in operation. Mr. Carrizales stated the church was no longer 

operating and the church building had been converted into a single-family residence.  

 

OPPOSITION RAYMOND ARANDA 403 North Ironwood advised he has lived there since 1972. He 

has been impressed with the value of his home, since Habitat for Humanity has come in and has built 

some homes in the area. He is concerned that duplexes and renters would increase traffic in the area and 

bring down the value of his home. It is a short block and if they build 10 units, there will be ten additional 

cars on the street.  

 

OPPOSITION DARON MANN 3503 East Cornell Street stated the duplex units would be worthless in 

five years, because we do not educate people on how to take care of a residential area. Renters will be 

moving in and out and not taking care of the properties, because it is not their home.  

 

BOARD MEMBER ZACH SAWYER asked if the units would be sold or rented. Mr. Carrizales stated 

the developer would own them. They will be larger units with yards and driveways. There will not be an 

increase in traffic since the property is so close to Loop 289. Mr. Sawyer stated the zoning district would 

be downzoning from the current district, which is a good fit in this area. 

 

BOARD MEMBER ABEL HERANDEZ asked if there is going to be a property management company 

that maintains the yards. Mr. Carrizales stated he does not know, because in the future they may sell the 

duplexes as individual properties or as a package. They are requesting the the zone change so they can 

build in the area.  

 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2418-C a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON  and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 4 (in favor) to 3 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

BRANDON HARDAWAY, RENEE CAGE, and SUSAN TOMLINSON cast the votes in opposition. 

 

 











2418-C 

 

Subject property. View to the east. 

 

  

 View to the north. 

View to the west. 

 

View to the south. 





 AI# 10808 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0097, for Zone Case
3257-O, a request of City of Lubbock, Lubbock Fire Rescue, for a Specific Use for Public Use on
property zoned Garden Office District (GO), at 3302 142nd Street, located north of 142nd Street and
east of Indiana Avenue, on 2.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff is not making a recommendation on the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3257-O 
Staff Report 3257-O 
Documentation 3257-O 









METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 2.500 acre tract of land located in Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 
being a portion of that 60.015 acre tract of land as described under County Clerk File Number 2017021344, Official Public 
Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said 2.500 acre tract being further described as follows: 

BEGINNING at an "x" chiseled in concrete set in the North right-of-way line of 142nd Street as described under County 
Clerk File Number (CCFN) 2020008833, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT), and the most 
Southerly Southeast corner of Tract "A", Police Department South Substation Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock 
County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded under CCFN 2020008833, OPRLCT, for 
the Southwest corner of this tract which bears N. 01°46'00" E. a distance of 1235.49 feet and S. 88°02'16" E. a distance of 
445.00 feet from the Southwest corner of Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 

THENCE N. 46°51'52" E., along the Eastern boundary of said Tract "A", a distance of 14.12 feet to 1/2" iron rod with cap 
marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." found; 

THENCE N. 01°46'00" E., continuing along the Eastern boundary of said Tract "A", a distance of 200.00 feet to a 1/2" iron 
rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the Northwest corner of this tract, from whence a 1/2" iron rod with 
cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." found at the most Easterly Northeast corner of said Tract "A" bears N. 01°46'00" E. 
a distance of 200.00 feet; 

THENCE S. 88°02'16" E. a distance of 509.42 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the 
most Northerly Northeast corner of this tract; 

THENCE S. 43°02'16" E. a distance of 14.14 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the 
most Easterly Northeast corner of this tract; 

THENCE S. 01°57'44" W. a distance of 185.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the 
most Easterly Southeast corner of this tract; 

THENCE S. 46°57'44" W. a distance of 21.21 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the 
most Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 

THENCE N. 88°02'16" W., at 473.70 feet pass a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for  the 
Northeast corner of said 142nd Street, continuing along the North line of said 142nd Street for a total distance of 513.70 feet 
to the Point of Beginning. 

Contains: 108,890 square feet 

Bearings are relative to Grid North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, 2011 (epoch 2010.0). Distances 
are Surface, U.S. Survey Feet. 

Surveyed on the ground, 

June 28, 2021 

Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 

Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas 

Exhibit A



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3257-O 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant  City of Lubbock, Lubbock Fire Rescue 

Property Owner   City of Lubbock, Lubbock Fire Rescue 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff is not making a recommendation

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 28, 2016, Ordinance 2016-O0054. This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T).
• October 13, 2016, Zone Case 3257-B, Ordinance No. 2016-O147: This property was rezoned from T to 

Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use.
• September 15, 2021, Zone Case 3257-L, Ordinance No. 2021-O0120: This property was rezoned from R-1 

Specific Use to Garden Office District (GO).
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3257-O: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

Specific Use for Public Use on property zoned Garden Office District (GO) by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 2
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property consists of 2.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1. It has remained vacant 
since annexation. A new fire station is proposed at this location. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north is vacant and zoned GO. Properties to the east and south are vacant and zoned Single-
Family District (R-1). Property to the west is zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) Specific Use and is developed 
with a police substation.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 3302 142nd Street, north of 142nd Street and east of Indiana Avenue. The 
applicant requests a Specific Use for Public Use on property zoned Garden Office District.  

Current zoning:  Garden Office   

Requested zoning: Specific Use for Public Use 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current GO zoning is, “… to provide for quality garden office development through proper 
planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 
compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses. When proposed garden office development is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, 



Page 2 of 2 

design standards and site planning shall provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent residential 
zoning districts.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use District, “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed Specific Use location is along 142nd Street, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. The primary function of Local Streets is to provide access to smaller, destination-
oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed Specific Use and may need some additional public improvements as the 
property is unplatted.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Photos
F. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla  
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2107
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us 

Kristen Sager 
Director of Planning 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109 
ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3257-O 

Allowable Uses: 

Transportation: 

Garden Office District (GO) 

Specific Use 

The proposed development has a point of access from 142nd Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

142nd Street, 
Local Street, Not 

Completed  

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.5 District 4 

Case 3257-O: City of Lubbock, Lubbock Fire Rescue  

Request for a Specific Use for Public Use on property zoned Garden Office District 

(GO), at:  

 3302 142nd Street, located north of 142nd Street and east of Indiana Avenue,

on 2.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1.

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were two (2) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. 

Staff did not make a recommendation on this request. 

APPLICANT DEPUTY CHIEF ROB KEINAST stated this new fire station will be the furthest south 

out of all the fire stations. There is a police substation to the west and a University Medical Center EMS 

station to the north. It will be the public safety area for the south part of town. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3257-O a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by 

ABEL HERNANDEZ to approve the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001130
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001462
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001462








3257-O 

 

Subject property. View to the east. 

 

  

View to the south. 

View to the north. 

 

View to the west. 









 AI# 10810 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0098, for Zone Case
3356-A, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), at 3136 130th Street, located north of 130th Street and
west of Flint Avenue, on 4.201 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 21.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

or detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3356-A 
Staff Report 3356-A 
Documentation 3356-A 







AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 

6515 68th Street, Suite 300 TBPE Reg. # F-9197 Office: (806) 771-5976 
Lubbock, Texas  79424 TBPELS Reg. #101785-00  Fax: (806) 771-7625 
 

AMD Engineering 
  

METES AND BOUNDS FOR 
A 4.201 ACRE TRACT, 

LOCATED IN SECTION 21, BLOCK E2, 
L.A. PATILLO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 270,  

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2) 
 
Metes and Bounds description for a 4.201 acre tract of land located in Section 21, Block E2, L.A. 
Patillo Survey, Abstract No. 270, being a portion of that certain 60.28 acre tract of land described 
in a Warranty Deed recorded in County Clerk’s File Number 2010037777 of the Official Public 
Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said metes and bounds contain 4.201 acres of land being 
further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the north right-of-way line of  F.M. 1585/130th Street(future Loop 88), 
of these tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,236,782.47 and Easting: 937,017.41 of the Texas 
Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone,; 
 
THENCE N. 01° 39’ 46” E. an approximate distance of 259.94 feet to the southwest corner of the 
plat limits of Lots 60 through 77, Bella Mia Estates as recorded in the map, plat and/or dedication 
deed thereof recorded in County Clerk’s File Number 2012036311; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 12’ 32” E. an approximate distance of 20.00 feet; 
 
THENCE N. 46° 45’ 35” E. an approximate distance of 14.15 feet to a point in the south right-of-
way line of an alley, previously dedicated in said Bella Mia Estates; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 16’ 21” E., along the south right-of-way line of said alley, an approximate 
distance of 805.22 feet; 
 
THENCE S. 43° 16’ 22” E. an approximate distance of 14.14 feet, to a point in the west right-of-
line of Flint Avenue, previously dedicated in said Bella Mia Estates; 
 
THENCE S. 01° 43’ 38” W. an approximate distance of 12.97 feet; 
 
THENCE N. 88° 02’ 19” W. an approximate distance of 194.56 feet; 
 
THENCE S. 01° 54’ 16” W. an approximate distance of 257.48 feet; 
 
THENCE N. 87° 31’ 45” W. an approximate distance of 383.21 feet; 
 
THENCE N. 87° 14’ 53” W. an approximate distance of 266.45 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. Bearings are based on the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North 
Central Zone. Distances are at surface, in U.S. survey feet. 
 
This description prepared for zoning purposes only, with information from  previous surveys and 
does not represent a survey as made upon the ground. 



69

70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77

79 80 81

68

67 66 65 64 63 62 61 60 111 110

14.14'

12.97'

20.00'

14.15'

OWNER:

SKIBELL ALBERT IN
C

(VOL. 7
338, P

G. 2
57)

F
LI

N
T  

A
V

E
N

U
E

LOTS 60 THROUGH 77

BELLA M
IA ESTATES

(P&D 2013036311)

OWNER:

BRASELTON ENTERPRISES

(CCFN: 2019017001)

OWNER:

JEFFREY & DEBBIE BRASELTON

(CCFN: 2016024107)

F.M. 1585/ 130TH STREET
(FUTURE LOOP 88)

OWNER:

BETENBOUGH HOMES, LLC

(CCFN: 2017007995)

LOTS 79 THROUGH 111

BELLA M
IA ESTATES

(P&D 2014027918)

F
LI

N
T 

A
V

E
N

U
E

128TH STREET
128TH STREET

ALLEY (PREV. DEDICATED)

ALLEY (PREV. DEDICATED)

NORTHING:  7,237,027.10
EASTING:        937,860.10

POINT OF BEGINNING
NORTHING:  7,236,782.47
EASTING:        937,017.41

0 50' 200'

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

(SHEET 2)

A 4.201 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN

SECTION 21, BLOCK E2,
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

100'

P:\2022\BELLA MIA ZONE CASE\BELLA MIA ZONE CASE.dwg, 4/26/2022 15:49:26



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3356-A 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant Betenbough Homes 

Property Owner  Betenbough Homes 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 6, 2006, Ordinance No. 2006-O0121: This property was annexed into city limits and zoned 

Transition District (T).
• October 8, 2018, Zone Case 3356, Ordinance No. 2018-O0122: This property was rezoned from T to 

General Retail District (C-3).
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3356-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from General Retail District (C-3) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) by a vote of
7-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 16
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
This property consists of 4.201 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 21. It has remained vacant since 
annexation. 

Adjacent Property Development  
This property is surrounded by single-family residences zoned T to the north, vacant unsubdivided property zoned 
T to the west, and vacant unsubdivided property zoned C-3 to the south and east. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 3136 130th Street, north of 130th Street and west of Flint Avenue. The 
applicant is requesting a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Interstate Highway Commercial 
District (IHC). 

Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) 

Requested zoning: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas. Special consideration shall be given building height for developments adjacent to Mackenzie State Park, 
the Yellowhouse Canyon Lakes, and the Central Business District.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 130th Street (future Loop 88) which is designated as a proposed Freeway and 
west of Flint Avenue which is designated as a Collector street. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of 
automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances. Collectors are designed for medium volumes of 
vehicles operating at lower speeds. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Commercial uses. The requested zone change to 
IHC is consistent with this designation. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate in the 
proposed location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning, but may require additional public improvements due to the 
property being unplatted.  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Director of Planning 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096 806-775-2109
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3356-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 130th Street (Loop 88) 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Loop 88 
Freeway, Proposed 

Outer Loop  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 320 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.6 District 4 

Case 3356-A: Betenbough Homes  

 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Interstate Highway 

Commercial District (IHC) at: 

 3136 130th Street, located north of 130th Street and west of Flint Avenue, on 

4.201 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 21 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were sixteen (16) notifications sent out and zero (0) 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT RONNIE WALLACE 10513 Valencia Avenue representing Betenbough Homes advised 

this request provides a great opportunity for more flexibility off Loop 88 and it would provide a barrier 

for existing homes to the north.  

No one spoke in opposition or in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3356-A a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the  request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001426










North View East View

South View West View

3356-A



I� c· r

Lubbock 
TEXAS 

Project Information 

Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

Location or Address: 3136 130th Street (Corner of 1585 & Flint, South of Bella Mia)

Lots/Tracts: 4.201 Acre Tract

Survey & Abstract: A 4.201 Acre Tract, Located in Section 21, Block E2, L.A. Patillo Survey, Abstract No. 270, Lubbock County, Texas

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes 0 No □ Total Acreage of Request:_
4

_
·2

_
0_1 _______ _

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Existing Zoning: C3 (General Retail District) 

Requested zoning: IHC (Interstate Highway Commercial District)

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? 

Representative/ Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name: N/ A 

Yes □ No 0 

----------------------------------

Name: ___________________________________ _ 

Address: _______________ City: ___________ State: ___ _ 

ZIP Code: _______ Telephone: _________ Email: __________ _ 

Applicant's Signature: ______________________________ _
Date: ______________ Printed Name: ________________ 

_ 
Owner Information 

Firm Name: Betenbaugh Homes

Owner: Betenbaugh Homes

Address: 7919 4th Street City: Lubbock State: TX
----

ZIP Code: 79424 Telephone: 806-412 -6611

Property 
_

O _w _n _e -
r's_S_ i-gn_a_t-ur_e _: 

_ fl2-/� Email: ronniew@betenbough.com

---

Date: 4-27-22 Printed Name: Ronnie Wallace
-----------------

Preparer Information 

Preparers Signature: ______________________________ _ 

Date: ______________ Printed Name: ________________ _ 

For City Use Only 

Zone Case No: __________ _ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: _______ _ 

Request for zoning change from: ____________ To: _____________ _ 

Lots: _______________ Blocks: __________________ _ 

Addition: 
-----------------------------------

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us. 



 AI# 10811 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0099, for Zone Case
3016-D, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for the Kelling Family Revocable Trust, and Enrico
and Teresita Aguas, for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM), Transition District (T),
and Garden Office District (GO) to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a self-storage facility,
generally located west of Quincy Avenue and south of 98th Street, on 7.36 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 22.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a vote of
6-1-0. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3016-D 
Staff Report 3016-D 
Documentation 3016-D 













Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3016-D 
City Council Meeting  June 28, 2022 

 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 
 

Property Owner  Kelling Family Revocable Trust and Enrico & Teresita Aguas 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: This property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition 

District (T). 

 August 16, 2004, Zone Case 3016, Ordinance No. 2004-O0083: A portion of this property was rezoned 

from Transition District (T) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) and Garden Office District (GO). 

 June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3016-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from Apartment-Medical District (AM), Transition District (T), and Garden Office District (GO) to 

Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a self-storage facility by a vote of 6-1-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 19 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

This property consists of 7.36 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22. It has remained vacant since 

annexation. There is a drainage culvert which runs east to west through the north end of the property.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

To the south is property zoned Two-Family District (R-2), which is vacant. To the west is vacant property zoned 

GO and T. To the east is vacant land and a single-family home zoned T. To the north are single-family homes 

zoned Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for reduced setbacks. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located west of Quincy Avenue and south of 98th Street. The applicant is 

requesting a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM), Transition District (T), and Garden Office District 

(GO) to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a self-storage facility. 

 

Current zoning:  Apartment-Medical District (AM), Garden Office District (GO), Transition District (T) 
 

Requested zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a self-storage facility 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current Apartment-Medical zoning is “…to provide for quality medical and related development 

through proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which 

will ensure the compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; 



Page 2 of 3 

 

provide modern facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the 

city as a medical center.” 

 

The intent of the current Garden Office zoning is “…to provide for quality garden office development through 

proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure 

the compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses.” 

 

The intent of the current Transition zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed 

territory until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Local Retail District zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial 

uses which serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 

intersections of major thoroughfares.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 

the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along 98th Street and Quincy Avenue. 98th Street is designated as a Principal Arterial and Quincy 

Avenue is designated as a Collector. A Principal Arterial is a major thoroughfare designed to carry large quantities 

of traffic at relatively high speeds. A Collector is a street designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at 

lower speeds for access within residential, commercial and industrial areas. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change and Specific Use are compatible with the surrounding area and would not change the 

character of the existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While the requested C-2 

zoning is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location along a major thoroughfare and 

has adequate buffering from the single family homes to the south (Comprehensive Plan Pg. 60). Therefore, this 

request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request and Specific Use are in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The R-2 district to 

the south provides a buffer for single-family homes farther south and west and the location is appropriate along 

a thoroughfare and a collector street.   

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses in the C-2 district, as well as the Specific Use for a self-storage 

facility, though additional infrastructure improvements may be necessary as the property is unplatted. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map  

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Response 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Kristen Sager 

Planner     Director of Planning 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-2109 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3016-D 

Allowable Uses: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from 98th Street and Quincy 

Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

98th Street, Principal 
Arterial 

R.O.W. 50 feet, 3 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Quincy Avenue, 
Collector, Future 

Currently unpaved 
R.O.W. 64 feet, 5 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.7 District 5 

Case 3016-D: AMD Engineering, LLC for the Kelling Family Revocable Trust and 

Enrico & Teresita Aguas  

Request for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM), Transition District 

(T), and Garden Office District (GO) to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific Use for a 

self-storage facility, at: 

 Generally located west of Quincy Avenue and south of 98th Street, on 7.36

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22.

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were nineteen (19) notifications sent out and one (1) 

returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, AMD Engineering, 6515 68th Street stated there is an existing 

drainage channel on 98th Street. There will be fencing along the south and west property lines. The 

entrance will be from Quincy Avenue. 

BOARD MEMBER JAMES BELL advised he is concerned that it is not in conformance with the Future 

Land Use Map. 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001195
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001195
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001462
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001462


Zone Case 3016-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3016-D a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by  BRANDON 

HARDAWAY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 6 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

JAMES BELL cast the vote in opposition. 

 

 

 













3016-D 

View to the north.  View to the east. 

View to the south.Subject Property View to the west.  



 

 

Zone Case 3016-D Self-Storage Map 

169261
Pen
=

169261
Pen
-











 AI# 10813 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0100, for Zone Case
3289-A, a request of Betenbough Homes for Alcove Farms, for a Planned Development (PD) on
property zoned General Retail District (C-3) and Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for
Commercial Sustainable Farming at 7919, 7921, and 8101 4th Street, located south of 4th Street and
west of Alcove Avenue, Alcove Farms Addition, Tracts A and B, and 65.5 acres of unplatted land out of
Block D-6, Section 2.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3289-A 
Staff Report 3289-A 
Documentation 3289-A 







AN 80.831 ACRE TRACT  
IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF  

SECTION 1, BLOCK D-6, H. E. & W. T. RR. CO. SURVEY 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
AN 80.831 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4) OF 
SECTION 1, BLOCK D-6, H. E. & W. T. RR. CO. SURVEY, LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS AND 
BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 42.78 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 7536, PAGE 115, A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 10.16 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 8826, PAGE 194 AND A 
PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 40.64 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND RECORDED 
IN VOLUME 10275, PAGE 332 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK 
COUNTY, SAID 80.831 ACRE TRACT BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED BY METES AND 
BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 1 FOR THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF THIS TRACT AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A 12.595 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND (TRACT “A” FOR PURPOSES OF THIS DESCRIPTION) SURVEYED THE SAME DATE 
HEREWITH, WHENCE A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF F. M. 
HIGHWAY 2255 AND ALCOVE AVENUE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 1 BEARS                    N. 00° 13' 23" W. A DISTANCE OF 353.66 FEET; 
 
THENCE DUE EAST A DISTANCE OF 1547.06 FEET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID 40.64 ACRE TRACT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT “A” FOR THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THIS TRACT, WHENCE A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 40.64 ACRE TRACT BEARS N. 00° 15' 40" W. A DISTANCE 
OF 355.70 FEET; 
 
THENCE S. 00° 15' 40" E., ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID 40.64 ACRE, A DISTANCE OF 
2273.05 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH A CAP FOUND AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
SAID 40.64 ACRE TRACT FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THIS TRACT; 
 
THENCE S. 89° 52' 00" W., AT A DISTANCE OF 459.01 FEET PASS A 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND 
AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A 23.51 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 9897, PAGE 248 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, SAME BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF A 14 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 9604, PAGE 142 OF THE OFFICIAL 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, CONTINUING AT A DISTANCE OF 674.04 FEET 
PASS A 1" IRON PIPE WITH A CAP FOUND AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 10.16 
ACRE TRACT, CONTINUING AT A DISTANCE OF 1547.05 FEET PASS A 60d NAIL FOUND 
IN PAVEMENT, CONTINUING FOR A TOTAL DISTANCE OF 1548.57 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON 
ROD WITH A CAP SET AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 1 FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT; 
 
THENCE N. 00° 13' 23" W. A DISTANCE OF 2276.65 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
BEARINGS OF THIS SURVEY ARE RELATIVE TO GEODETIC NORTH AS DETERMINED BY 
GPS OBSERVATIONS.  DISTANCES ARE SURFACE. 
 
 



6515 68th Street, Suite 300 TBPE Reg. # F-9197 Office: (806) 771-5976 
Lubbock, Texas  79424 TBPELS Reg. #101785-00  Fax: (806) 771-7625 
 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION FOR 
ALCOVE FARMS, 
TRACTS “A”-“C”, 

AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
The plat limits for Alcove Farms, Tract “A” through “C” , an addition to the City of Lubbock, 
Lubbock County, Texas, located in the northeast quarter (NE/4) of Section 2, Block D6, H. E. & 
W. T. RR. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 758, Lubbock County, Texas, said tracts conveyed to Alcove 
Farms, LLC, described in a Warranty Deeds recorded in County Clerk’s File Numbers 
2016044891 and 2017019754 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said 
tracts contain 79.439 acres of land being further described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at the northeast corner of said Section 2 having coordinates of Northing: 
7,279,02.68 and Easting: 905,382.95 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas 
North Central Zone; 
 
THENCE S. 01° 40' 46" W., along the east line of said Section 2, a distance of 1309.53 feet to a 
point in the centerline of Alcove Avenue and the southeast corner of these metes and bounds;  
 
THENCE N. 88° 15' 06" W. a distance of 2638.66 feet to a point for the southwest corner of 
these metes and bounds; 
 
THENCE N. 01° 40' 14" E. a distance of 1313.17 feet to a point in the centerline of F.M. Highway 
2255 and the northwest corner of these metes and bounds; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 10' 21" E. a distance of 2638.87 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings 
and coordinates are relative to the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central 
Zone, as calculated from a point of origin located at Northing: 7,279,379.90 and Easting: 
904,898.61 with a convergence angle of -01° 54' 19" and a combined scale factor of 0.99976214. 
Distances are at surface, in U.S. Survey feet.  



A 12.595 ACRE TRACT  
IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF  

SECTION 1, BLOCK D-6, H. E. & W. T. RR. CO. SURVEY 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

 
A 12.595 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4) OF 
SECTION 1, BLOCK D-6, H. E. & W. T. RR. CO. SURVEY, LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
AND BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 42.78 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED 
AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 7536, PAGE 115, A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 10.16 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 8826, PAGE 194 
AND A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN 40.64 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 10275, PAGE 332 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
LUBBOCK COUNTY, SAID 12.595 ACRE TRACT BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED BY 
METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A RAILROAD SPIKE FOUND IN THE CENTERLINE OF F. M. HIGHWAY 
2255 AND ALCOVE AVENUE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 1 FOR 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT; 
 
THENCE N. 89° 55' 27" E., ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF F. M. HIGHWAY 2255 AND 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 1, A DISTANCE OF 1546.82 FEET TO A RAILROAD 
SPIKE FOUND AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 40.64 ACRE FOR THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THIS TRACT; 
 
THENCE S. 00° 15' 40" E., ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID 40.64 ACRE, A DISTANCE 
OF 355.70 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH A CAP SET AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF A 80.831 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (TRACT “B” FOR PURPOSES OF THIS 
DESCRIPTION) SURVEYED THE SAME DATE HEREWITH FOR THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF THIS TRACT, WHENCE A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH A CAP FOUND AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 40.64 ACRE TRACT BEARS  S. 00° 15' 40" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 2273.05 FEET; 
 
THENCE DUE WEST A DISTANCE OF 1547.06 FEET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 1 AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT “B” FOR THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT, WHENCE A 1/2" IRON ROD WITH A CAP SET 
AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT “B” AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 BEARS S. 00° 13' 23" E. A DISTANCE 
OF 2276.65 FEET; 
 
THENCE N. 00° 13' 23" W. A DISTANCE OF 353.66 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. BEARINGS OF THIS SURVEY ARE RELATIVE TO GEODETIC NORTH AS 
DETERMINED BY GPS OBSERVATIONS.  DISTANCES ARE SURFACE. 



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3289-A 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant Betenbough Homes 

Property Owner  Alcove Farms 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 27, 1984, Ordinance No. 8660: This property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition 
District (T).

• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538, Ordinance No. 8827: This property was rezoned from T to Single-

Family District (R-1).

• September 8, 2016, Zone Case 3289, Ordinance No. 2016-O0129: This property was rezoned from R-1 to

R-1 and General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for Commercial Sustainable Farming.

• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3289-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

Planned Development (PD) on property zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and General Retail District 

(C-3) with a Specific Use for Commercial Sustainable Farming by a vote of 7-0-0.  

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 17

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 

A portion of the property was platted as Alcove Farms, Tracts A and B in 2017 and 2022 respectively. The 

remaining 65.5 acres are unplatted and located in Block D-6, Section 2. A farm accessory building was constructed 

in 2017 and the remainder of the property consists of farm land. 

Adjacent Property Development  

This property is surrounded by single-family residences and vacant land zoned R-1 and R-1 Specific Use for 

Commercial Sustainable Farming. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 7919, 7921, and 8101 4th Street, south of 4th Street and west of Alcove 

Avenue. The applicant is requesting a Planned Development (PD) to increase the number of animals and 

structures on the property, as detailed in the documentation submitted with the request. 

Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) and General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for 

Commercial Sustainable Farming 

Requested zoning: Planned Development (PD) 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 

units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 

land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity centers 

in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such as state 

or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent 

residential areas should be considered.” 

 

The intent of the current Specific Use District is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 

the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 

 

The intent of the Planned Development District (PD) is “to provide a zoning regulatory process that encourages 

planning and design, resulting in plans for particular sites that fulfill the goals and objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan while allowing for development that could not normally be achieved under conventional 

zoning regulations.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of 4th Street and west of Alcove Avenue, both of which are designated as Principal 

Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high 

volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed Planned Development is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character 

of the existing development. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed Planned Development is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 

proposed location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the Planned Development and may require additional public improvements to support 

the intensity of the proposed uses, since a large portion of the property is currently unplatted. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

H. Notification Response 

 

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Director of Planning 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

ahenry@mylubbock.us     ksager@mylubbock.us  

  

 

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A           Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3289-A 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development District (PD) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 4th Street and Alcove 

Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

4th Street 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified)  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Alcove Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.10 District 6 

Case 3289-A: Betenbough Homes for Alcove Farms 

Request for a Planned Development (PD) on property zoned General Retail District (C-3) 

and Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Commercial Sustainable Farming 

at: 

 7919, 7921, and 8101 4th Street, located south of 4th Street and west of Alcove

Avenue, Alcove Farms Addition, Tracts A & B, and 65.5 acres of unplatted

land out of Block D-6, Section

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER stated there were seventeen (17) notifications sent out. 

There has been one (1) returned in favor and one (1) opposition. Staff shared the location of the property 

including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this 

request. 

APPLICANT KERRY RICHIE 6101 87th Street stated he is on the Board of Directors for Betenbough 

Homes and is the President of Alcove Farms. The farm is for regenerative farming, which started in 2016. 

Regenerative farming is a process that helps to improve the soil by having chickens and cattle move the 

dirt and reproduce in the area. This process allows for natural production. In 2019 they partnered with 

Texas Tech to do a soil analysis and found that the eighty acres on the west side of Alcove already has an 

increase of microbes in the soil.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001480


Zone Case 3289-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

FAVOR MORRIS LOCKNANE 7902 4th Street advised he lives directly across the street from Alcove 

Farms and has lived there for over 28 years. The farm is a great neighbor and he would love to see them 

be able to grow. 

No one spoke in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3289-A a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











3289-A

View West.

View North. View East.

View South.





4TH STREET
F.M. 225

ALCOVE FARMS CONCEPT PLAN

1/64” = 1’-0”

A
L

C
O

V
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

MAIN BARN
(EXISTING)

STAGE
(PROPOSED)

RESTAURANT
(PROPOSED)

SILO
FOR RESTROOMS

(PROPOSED)

SILO
FOR EQUIPMENT STORAGE

(PROPOSED)

WATER FEATURE
(PROPOSED)

COMPOST
FACILITY
(EXISTING)

RESTAURANT EVENT
PARKING
(PROPOSED)

EVENT PARKING
(PROPOSED)



$1 Lubbock Planning Department
Cityof POBox2000/l3l4AvenueK

Lubbock Lubbock, TX 79457
TEXAS APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE

Project Information

Location or Address: 7919 4th Street (4th & Alcove)

Lots/Tracts: 80.831 Acre Tract, Alcove Farms Tracts “A” - “C”, 12.595 Acre Tract (See Attached Descriptions)

Survey & Abstract: See Attached Site Plan & Concept Plan

Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes No Total Acreage of Request:_172.865

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Existing Zoning: C3 & Ri specific use

Requested Zoning: PD (Planned Development)

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? Yes No E

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

Firm Name:* Wo4J

Name: f(c

Address: (,3O5 ? 744& City:____________________ State: Ty

Applicant’sS

,j Email: ( e2e?&L ociçtt.

Date: l’ O. -3-- Printed Name: kvr4 W,ttic’e__

Owner Information

Firm Name Alcove Farms

Owner: Alcove Farms

Address: 7919 4th Street City: Lubbock State: TX

ZIP Code: 79424 Tele one: 806-773-8661 Email: amosg@alcovefarms.com

Prope rty Owner’sSignature:Z

Date:_________________________________ Printed Name: mos ee

Preparer Information

Preparer’s Signature:

Date:_________________________________ Printed Name:__________________________________________

For City Use Only

Zone Case No:___________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date:

___________________

Request for zoning change from:_____________________________ To:_________________________________

Lots:_____________________________________________ Blocks:_________________________________________________________

Addition:

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department

by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.



323

Amos Green, Farm Manager, Alcove Farms
791.9 4th Street
Lubbock, Texas 79416

April 2gth 2022

Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Lubbock
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, Texas 79401

Dear Commission Members,

Our operations at Alcove Farms (located at 4th Street and Alcove Avenue) have been very successful and
well received. Demand for our eggs and frozen chicken has grown significantly over the last few years.
Interest in Alcove Farms is very high, with residents throughout the city asking if they can tour the farm,
so they can see where their food is grown. We are truly blessed to have the support of the Lubbock
community.

We are requesting a Zone Change Request from C-3 Specific Use and R-1 Specific Use for commercial
sustainable farming to Planned Development (PD) because we would like to potentially add structures
and animals in the future. The current ordinance allows the structures/animals listed below. We would
like these structures/animals to continue to be allowed in our new request. (We want to continue to
have all permitted uses in the C-3 & R-1 zoning categories, as well as the conditions stated below, in the
new PD request.)

Ordinance 2016-00129 states:

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

I. That the property be tied to the proposed site plan and floor plans (Exhibit
B) for the commercial corner, limited to: a restaurant with the ability to
allow events, meat market, general retail, chicken processing (entirely inside
a building), grain silo, composting facility, and the pole barn (as illustrated
on the site plan and floor plan).

2. That the agricultural area (see metes and bounds in Exhibit A) shall be
limited to regenerative agriculture operations which shall be defined by

a. Rotation of animals in Vz - 5 acre paddoeks, animals shall be rotated
regularly in order to encourage regrowth of plants and grass.

b. Limited to 20 chickens per acre (including roosters),

c. Limited to 2 cows (or one cow and calve pair) per acre,

U. Limited to 4 sheep and/or goats per acre (male goats prohibited),

3. That permanent fencing shall be required which is adequate to secure all
livestock on the property, with a four rail pipe fence surrounding the
commercial corner.



1-cot.

In addition, we’d like to request the following changes/additions:

1) Event stage — for community involvement.
2) Standard barn type structures for housing animals and supplies.
3) Parking lot to accommodate events and restaurant.
4) Pond with fish — for entertainment, visual aesthetics, and possible future supply of fish fot restaurant.

5) Change of 20 chickens per acre (including roosters) to 40 chickens per acre (including roosters) — to

help accommodate the egg demand in Lubbock.
6) 20 Quail, ducks per acre —To supply fresh meat and eggs to Lubbock.
7) 20 Geese, turkey, rabbits per acre — To supply fresh meat to Lubbock.
8) 2 Donkey/Mule, llamas per acre — to protect livestock from predators.
9) 1 Beehive per acre — to pollenate the farm.
10) 2 Bison per acre — to assist in rotational grazing, visual aesthetics, meat production.
11) 2 [mu, Peacock, or other birds — for visual aesthetics.
12) 2 Swine per acre — to assist in rotational grazing efforts and provide fresh meat to Lubbock.

We’re very excited about the future of Alcove Farms and appreciate your consideration of this request.

Sincerely,

Amos Green
Farm Manager, Alcove Farms

Enclosures: Site Plan, Concept Plan





 AI# 10842 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Appointments Advisory Board,
Building Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Central
Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic
Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Permit
and License Appeal Board, StarCare Board of Trustees, Veterans Advisory Committee, and the Zoning
Board of Adjustment.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Appointments Advisory Board, Building Board of Appeals, Canadian
River Municipal Water Authority Board of Directors, Central Business District Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, Citizens Traffic Commission, Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of
Directors, Lubbock Water Advisory Commission, Permit and License Appeal Board, StarCare Board of
Trustees, Veterans Advisory Committee, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 10840 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution appointing the City of Lubbock's representative to the
Hope Center Steering Committee to represent the City in all matters related to the future construction
and operations of the Hope Center.

Item Summary
StarCare shall be responsible for the construction of a 10,000 square foot (approximate) service site to be
adjoined with the existing service location known as Sunrise Canyon in which behavioral crisis services
will be delivered to help people who are experiencing mental health distress receive
appropriate specialty healthcare, thereby avoiding emergency rooms, jails, and inpatient hospitals, as
appropriate.  The center will be open to all Lubbock residents regardless of income or insurance status.
The center will screen anyone who presents at the center in mental
health crisis with the goal of linking the individuals to the most appropriate level of care.  Although the
goal is to assist everyone, receipt of some services may be limited based on diagnosis and specific
program eligibility requirements.  The Subrecipient shall move existing crisis mental  health services
into the new facility to include:
1) 24/7 walk-in psychiatric crisis services;
2) 24/7 law enforcement/emergency services drop-off;
3) 23-hour Extended Observation Unit;
4) Drop in services for adults with complex mental health challenges;
5) Group therapy;
6) Psychosocial rehabilitation;
7) Targeted case management; and
8) Access to walk-in psychiatric consultation.

The parties will work to establish a steering committee through a separate interlocal agreement by
December 1, 2022 to recommend polices, improve coordination of, and support the operation of the
center.  The intention of the parties  is that the steering committee will make recommendations about the
operation and priorities of services to be provided in the center. The intentions of the parties is that the
steering committee agreement will be developed by members of the West Texas Mental Health
Collaborative (WTMHC). Each member organization of WTMHC will be offered one (1) position on
the steering committee. StarCare shall work with the steering committee and other vested community
organizations to braid existing funding, secure additional funding and, to the extent they are willing,
coordinate with existing providers to expand services to include:
1) Onsite medical clearance;
2) Onsite primary care:
3) Medication management;
4) An array of substance disorder services; and
5) Discharge planning to coordinate access to housing, social services, and treatment post-discharge,
utilizing case manager and peer support.

Fiscal Impact



Fiscal Impact
No Fiscal Impact associated with this action.

Staff/Board Recommending
City Council

Attachments
Hope Center Resolution 







 AI# 10812 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0101, for Zone Case
3382-A, a request of Betenbough Homes for 87 Street Partners, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 9902 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and
south of 98th Street, on 7.14 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 23.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3382-A 
Staff Report 3382-A 
Documentation 3382-A 









AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 

6515 68th Street, Suite 300 TBPE Reg. # F-9197 Office: (806) 771-5976 
Lubbock, Texas  79424 TBPELS Reg. #101785-00  Fax: (806) 771-7625 
 

AMD Engineering 
  

METES AND BOUNDS FOR 
A 7.140 ACRE TRACT, 

LOCATED IN SECTION 23, BLOCK AK, 
H.E. & W.T. RR. CO. SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 263,  

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2) 
 
Metes and Bounds description for a 7.140 acre tract of land located in the northeast quarter of 
Section 23, Block AK, H.E. & W.T. RR. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 263, being a portion of that 
certain 10.000 acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed recorded in County Clerk’s File 
Number 2009045344 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said metes and 
bounds contain 7.140 acres of land being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the south right-of-way line of 98th Street, previously dedicated 
according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in County Clerk’s Plat and 
Dedication Number 2020002630 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for 
the northwest corner of these tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,248,044.86 and Easting: 
908,939.95 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone, whence a 
railroad spike found at the northeast corner of said Section 23 bears N. 01° 10’ 06” E. a distance 
of 55.00 feet and S. 88° 10’ 06” E. a distance of 707.16 feet, said section corner having coordinates 
of Northing: 7,248,077.22 and Easting: 909,648.34 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 
(2011), Texas North Central Zone; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 10’ 06” E., along the south right-of-way line of said 98th Street, a distance of 
202.40 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 85° 18’ 21” E. a distance of 99.72 feet to the most northerly northeast corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01° 50’ 27” W. a distance of 389.96 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE S. 43° 31’ 42” E. a distance of 21.08 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 53’ 52” E. a distance of 325.18 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE N. 46° 26’ 58” E. a distance of 14.24 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88° 09’ 33” E. a distance of 55.00 to a point in the east line of said Section 23 for 
the most easterly northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01° 50’ 27” W., along the east line of said Section 23, a distance of 263.53 feet to 
the southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88° 09’ 33” W. a distance of 55.00 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this 
tract; 
 



AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 

6515 68th Street, Suite 300 TBPE Reg. # F-9197 Office: (806) 771-5976 
Lubbock, Texas  79424 TBPELS Reg. #101785-00  Fax: (806) 771-7625 
 

AMD Engineering 
  

THENCE S. 46° 50’ 10” W. a distance of 21.22 feet to a point in the north right-of-way line of 
100th Street, previously dedicated according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof 
recorded in County Clerk’s Plat and Dedication Number 2020002630 of the Official Public 
Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for a corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88° 10’ 06” W., along the north right-of-way line of said 100th Street, a distance of 
627.16 feet to a point of intersection for a corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 43° 09’ 50” W. a distance of 14.14 feet to a point in the west line of an alley, 
previously dedicated in the map/plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in County Clerk’s 
File Number 2019003962 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for a corner 
of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01° 50’ 27” E. a distance of 664.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings 
are based on the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone. Distances 
are at surface, in U.S. survey feet. 
 
This description prepared for zoning purposes only, with information from  previous surveys and 
does not represent a survey as made upon the ground. 



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3382-A 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant Betenbough Homes 

Property Owner  87 Street Partners 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• January 13, 1999, Ordinance No.10117: This property was annexed into city limits and zoned 

Transition District (T).
• July 9, 2019, Zone Case 3382, Ordinance No. 2019-O0080: This property was rezoned from T to General 

Retail District (C-3).
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3382-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 

change from General Retail District (C-3) to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 25
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
This property consists of 7.14 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 23. It has remained vacant since 
annexation. 

Adjacent Property Development 
This property is adjacent to single-family residences zoned Single-Family District (R-1) to the west. To the north 
is a South Plains Electric Coop substation zoned C-3 and a single-family home and commercial building zoned T. 
To the east is vacant land zoned C-3 and High-Density Apartment District (A-2). To the south is Frenship School, 
Upland Heights Elementary, zoned T. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 9902 Upland Avenue, west of Upland Avenue and South of 98th Street. The 
applicant is requesting a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Two-Family District (R-2). 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

General Retail District (C-3) 

Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.”  



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed Two-Family District is “…to promote stable, quality residential development of 
slightly increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used 
in accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density 
and high-density or non-residential districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located west of Upland Avenue and south of 98th Street, both of which are designated as Principal 
Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are designed to serve high volume needs of local traffic 
and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for commercial uses. While the request for R-2 zoning 
is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location, due to the proximity to existing 
residential uses. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change request is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the 
proposed location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning but may require additional improvements due to the property 
being unplatted  

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2021
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us

Kristen Sager 
Director of Planning 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109 
ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3382-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2) 

 Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Upland Avenue, 98th Street, 

and 100th Street. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.8 District 5 

Case 3382-A: Betenbough Homes for 87 Street Partners  

 

Request for zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Two-Family District (R-2) 

at: 

 9902 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 98th Street, 

on 7.14 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 23. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were twenty-five (25) notifications sent out and zero 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT RONNIE WALLACE 10513 Valencia Avenue, with Betenbough Homes, representing 

87 Street Partners, advised they have done several small community projects with a mix of duplexes and 

cottage homes, all over the city. 

BOARD MEMBER JAMES BELL asked if a property management company would manage the units. 

Mr. Wallace stated the investors are looking for a company to manage the properties and added the only 

Thoroughfare 
 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 80 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

98th Street  
Principal Arterial 

(Future) 

R.O.W. 33 feet, two-
lane, undivided, 

unpaved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

100th Street  
Local Street 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001046


Attachment A           Page 2 of 2 

Zone Case 3382-A 

access to this area is from 100th Street, but they are working with the Engineering Department to remedy 

that. 

BOARD MEMBER BRADON HARDAWAY asked if the rear of the properties would face the school. 

Mr. Wallace stated they would. Mr. Hardaway also asked if there will be alley access for 99th Street. Mr. 

Wallace stated that is something they are working on.  

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3382-A a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by AVIRAJ  

PATEL to approve  the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. 











3382-A

North View 

West View.South View.

East View.



99th STREET

U
R

B
A

N
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

14

15

16

17181920

47

556

557

558

559

560

555

554

553

552

551

550

549

548

547

546

543 544 545

746

740

739

738

737

736

735

734

733

743

744

745

752749

747

748

761

755754753751
756

758760
765 762732

757

U
R

B
A

N
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

99TH STREET

A
L

LE
Y

(P
R

E
V

. D
E

D
)

TRACT C
DRAINAGE & STORMWATER IMPOUNDMENT EASEMENT

(P&D 2019003962)

LO
TS

 5
24

-A
&

B

LO
TS

 5
25

 T
HROUGH 5

54
, L

OT 
55

5-
A&

B A
ND L

OT 
55

6-
A&

B

LO
TS

 5
57

 T
HROUGH 5

65
, L

O
T 

56
5-

A&
B A

ND L
OT 

56
6-

A&
B

LO
TS

 5
67

 T
HROUGH 5

74
, L

OT 
57

5-
A&

B A
ND L

OT 
57

6-
A&

B

LO
TS

 5
77

 T
HROUGH 5

84
, L

OT 
58

5-
A&

B A
ND T

RACTS
 C

&
D

W
IN

DST
ONE A

T 
UPLA

ND

(P
&

D 2
01

90
03

96
2)

TRACT "A
"

WIN
DSTONE

(P
&D 20140

41348)

RON & RICK BETENBOUGH

(CCFN 2009045344)

NORTHING:  7,247,629.09
EASTING:  909,633.98

98TH STREET
(SDD 2020002630)

98TH STREET
(NO DEDICATION FOUND)

U
P

L
A

N
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

( 4
0'

 R
- O

W
 E

SM
'T

. , 
V

O
L

.  7
82

,  P
G

. 6
9 9

)

(30' R-O-W, SDD 2015027138)

100TH STREET
(30' R-O-W, P&D 2014041348)

15
' F

U
TU

R
E

 S
T R

E
E

T 
D

E
D

IC
A

T I
O

N
 (

0 .
0 9

0 7
 A

C
R

E
S )

S E C T I O N  2 6 S E C T I O N

16.5' GTE EASEMENT
NO RECORD GRANT AND/OR DEDICATION KNOWN)

(3
0'

 R
- O

-W
, P

&
D

 2
0 1

50
2 7

1 3
6 )

U
R

B
A

N
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

( 3
0 '

 R
- O

-W
, P

&
D

 2
01

4 0
4 1

34
8)

750

LO
TS

 1
-1

00

W
IN

DST
ONE A

T 
UPLA

ND

(P
&

D 20
15

02
71

36
)

ALLEY (PREV. DED.)

NORTH LINE OF SECTION  23, BLOCK AKNORTHING:  7,248,044.86
EASTING:  908,939.95

10' DRE

4' PAE

THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION

DISTANCE OF 707.16' FROM THIS POINT.

T
H

E
 R

ID
G

E
T

R
A

C
T

 "
G

"
(P

&
D

 2
01

40
41

34
8)

N
O

T 
P

LA
T

TE
D

O
W

N
E

R
: 

E
N

R
IC

O
 G

. &
 T

E
R

E
SI

TA
 A

. A
G

U
A

S
(P

A
R

E
N

T 
D

E
E

D
: 

V
O

L.
 8

08
5,

 P
G

. 1
57

)

1 0
' R

-O
- W

 E
S M

N
'T

-S
P

E
C

,
V

O
L

. 6
5 3

2,
 P

G
. 1

4 3

PROPOSED 20' UUE
741

742

45'  TEMP.  DRE
 (CCFN 2019001456),

21.22'

7' UUE

7' UUE

7'
 U

U
E

7'
 U

U
E

763 759
764

14.14'

21.08'
14.24'

55.00'

55.00'

0 50' 200'

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

(SHEET 2)

A 7.14 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN SECTION 23,

BLOCK A-K, LUBBOCK
COUNTY, TEXAS

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

100'

P:\2022\220337-WINDSTONE PHASE 8\ZONE CASE\220337-WINDSTONE 8 ZONE CASE.dwg, 4/26/2022 15:52:22



City of

!Lubbock
TEXAS

Lubbock Planning Department
PC Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, TX 79457
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

Firm Name: Betenbough Homes

Name: Ronnie Wallace

Address: 6305 82nd Street

ZIP Code: 79424

Applicant’s Signature:

Date: 4.27.22

Owner Information

Firm Name: 87 Street Partners

Owner: 87th Street Partners

Address: 6305 82nd Street City: Lubbock

ZIP Code: 79424 Tele hone: 806-548-0400

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________

Date: 4.27.22

Preparer Information

Preparer’s Signature:___________________________________

Date:_________________________________ Printed Name:

For City Use Only

Zone Case No:_______________

Request for zoning change from:

Project Information

Location or Address: 9902 Upland Avenue (SW Corner of Upland & 98th)

Lots/Tracts: 7.14 Acre Tract

Survey & Abstract:
A 7.14 Acre Tract, Located in Section 23, Block AK, H.E. & W.T. RR. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 263, Lubbock County, Texas

7.14Metes and Bounds Attached: Yes No Total Acreage of Request:________________________

VacantExisting Land Use:_______________________________ Existing Zoning: C3 (General Retail District)

Requested Zoning: R2 (Two Family District)

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted? Yes D No

City:_Lubbock

__________________

State: TX

Email: ronniew@betenbough.com

Printed Name: Ronnie Wallace

__________________

State: TX

Email: rickb@betenbough.com

Printed Name: Rick Betenbough

Planning and Zoning Commission Date:

To:

Lots:__________________________________________ Blocks:______________________________________________________

Addition:

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at citvplanning@mylubbock.us.



 AI# 10816 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
07/12/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0102, for Zone Case
3464, a request of Canyon Rock Development, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to
Light Manufacturing District (M-1), at 5721 122nd Street, Frankford Farms Addition, Tract 11.

Item Summary
On June 28, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends denial of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 2, 2022, and recommended denial of the request by a unanimous
vote. Therefore, a minimum of 6 out of 7 Council votes are required to approve the request. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3464 
Staff Report 3464 
Documentation 3464 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3464 
City Council Meeting June 28, 2022 

Applicant Canyon Rock Development, LLC 

Property Owner  Jordan Madewell  

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends DENIAL of the request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 26, 2022, Ordinance No. 2022-O0065: This property was annexed and zoned Transition District (T).
• June 2, 2022, Zone Case 3464: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a zone 

change from Transition District (T) to Light Manufacturing District (M-1) by a vote of 0-7-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 7
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted as Frankford Farms Addition, Tract 11 in 1990 and is currently vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the east, south and west are zoned T, with commercial buildings and some residences to the 
east, Tipton Pet Hotel to the west, and mostly vacant land to the south. The property to the north is outside the 
city limits and is developed with commercial businesses.    

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located at 5721 122nd Street, south of 122nd Street and east of Frankford Avenue. The 
applicant is requesting a zone change from Transition District (T) to Light Manufacturing District (M-1). 

Current zoning:  Transition District (T)   

Requested zoning: Light Manufacturing District (M-1) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is, “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed M-1 zoning is, “…to provide for light industrial uses and those commercial uses 
requiring outside storage and display. The regulations are designed to provide for a mixture of heavy 
commercial and light industrial or manufacturing uses with proper standards to encourage attractive working 
areas for citizens.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along 122nd Street. 122nd Street is designated as a Collector by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial 
areas.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is not compatible with the surrounding area. There are residences less than 500 feet from 
this property. Many of the uses allowed in the M-1 zoning district would not be compatible with the nearby 
residential uses. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses. The proposed zone change 
to M-1 would not be consistent with this designation and would not conform to the principles of the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is not in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is not appropriate for this 
area.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is not suitable for the proposed use and would potentially need additional public improvements to 
support the intensity of uses described in M-1 zoning district. 
 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C.  Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Director of Planning 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-2109 
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    ksager@mylubbock.us 
 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3464 

 

Allowable Uses:    Light Manufacturing District (M-1) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 122nd Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

122nd Street, 
Collector, Completed  

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 40 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

5.9 District 5 

Case 3464: Canyon Rock Development, LLC  

 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Light Manufacturing District 

(M-1), at: 

 

 5721 122nd Street, Frankford Farms Addition, Tract 11. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were seven (7) notifications sent out. There were two (2) 

returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends denial of this request. 

The applicant was not in attendance.  

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3464 a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by ABEL 

HERNANDEZ to approve the request and the Commission members voted 0 (in favor) to 7 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001375












3464 

 

Subject property. View to the south. 

 

  

View to the east. 

View to the north. 

 

View to the west. 








	Agenda
	1.02.__Board Appointments
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_5.17.2022 S EUB
	       ATT_6.14.2022
	       ATT_6.16.2022 S Bus Tour
	5.01.__Budget Amendment #31
	       ATT_Budget Amendment _31
	5.02.__Budget Amendment 32
	       ATT_BA 32 and Exhibits
	5.03.__Ordinance - Amending Chapter 30, Lakes, Waterways and Floodplain
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Redline Ordinance
	5.04.__Underground Boring Services
	       ATT_Resolution - 16620 - Utility Contractors of America
	       ATT_Contract - 16620 - Utility Contractors of America
	       ATT_16620 Project Summary Sheet
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.05.__Traffic Signal Pier Drilling Services
	       ATT_Resolution 16624
	       ATT_Contract 16624
	       ATT_16624 Project Summary Sheet
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.06.__URA to City of Lubbock
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Deed and Exhibit _A_
	5.07.__Lease Agreement Abilene Aero, Inc. d/b/a Lubbock Aero at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution Abilene Aero, Inc. d_b_a Lubbock Aero
	       ATT_Lease Agreement Abilene Aero, Inc. d_b_a Lubbock Aero
	5.08.__Lease Agreement with Robert Madden Industries, Ltd. at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution Robert Madden Industries, Ltd.
	       ATT_Lease Agreement Robert Madden Industries, Ltd.
	5.09.__Non-Aeronautical Lease Agreement - Marco Steel & Aluminum Co.
	       ATT_Resolution - Marco Steel and Aluminum
	       ATT_Marco Steel Lease Agreement
	5.10.__Teinert Amendment No. 1 - Municipal Parking Garage
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 15261 Amendment 1
	       ATT_Original Contract and Resolution - Teinert
	       ATT_92672 Budget Summary
	Sheet1

	5.11.__Purchase Order 33001638 with CDW Government, LLC
	       ATT_Resolution CDW PO 33001638
	       ATT_CDW PO 33001638
	5.12.__Purchase Order with Dell Financial Services LLC
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	5.13.__ZC 696-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 696-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 696-A
	       ATT_Documentation 696-A
	Graphics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19

	Slide Pics 696-A.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	5.14.__ZC 2418-C
	       ATT_Ordinanace 2418-C
	       ATT_Staff Report 2418-C
	       ATT_Documentation 2418-C
	5.3 Zone Case 2418-C Documentaion.pdf
	Case Information 2418-C

	2418-C_1locator
	2418-C_2imag
	2418-C_3zoning
	2418-C_4flup
	5.3 Zone Case 2418-C Documentaion
	Photo's 2418-C
	Application.pdf


	5.15.__ZC 3257-O
	       ATT_Ordinance 3257-O
	3257-O
	MB 3257-O

	       ATT_Staff Report 3257-O
	       ATT_Documentation 3257-O
	5.5 Zone Case 3257-O Documentation.pdf
	Case Information 3257-O
	3257-O_1locator
	3257-O_2imag
	3257-O_3zoning
	3257-O_4flup
	Photo's 3257-O
	Fixed Site Plan

	Plat resized
	5.5 Zone Case 3257-O Documentation
	Application.pdf
	Meets and bounds


	5.16.__ZC 3356-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3356-A
	3356-A
	MB 3356-A

	       ATT_Staff Report 3356-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3356-A
	Bella Mia zone case.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	5.17.__ZC 3016-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3016-D
	3016-D MB
	3016-D
	3016-D


	       ATT_Staff Report 3016-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3016-D
	5.7 Zone Case 3016-D
	Zone Case 3016-D Case Information
	3016-D_1locator
	3016-d Response map
	3016-D_2imag
	3016-D_3zoning
	3016-D_4flup
	3016-D Photos
	Zone Case 3016 SelfStorage Map
	3016-D Signed Application

	3016-D Updated Site Plan
	5.7 Zone Case 3016-D
	3016-D Exhibit
	3016-D reply in favor


	5.18.__ZC 3289-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3289-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3289-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3289-A
	Slide Pics 3289-A.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	6.01.__Board Appointments 
	6.02.__Name City of Lubbock's representative to the Hope Center Steering Committee
	       ATT_Hope Center Resolution
	6.03.__ZC 3382-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3382-A
	3382-A
	MB 3382-A

	       ATT_Staff Report 3382-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3382-A
	Zone case.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	FINAL PLAT



	6.04.__ZC 3464
	       ATT_Ordinance 3464
	       ATT_Staff Report 3464
	       ATT_Documentation 3464
	Case Information 3464
	3464_1locator
	Notificaiton Map
	3464_2imag
	3464_3zoning
	3464_4flup
	Application.pdf
	Letters in favor
	Information




